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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 1I'm Dennis Carpenter, Chairman
of the Senafte Subcommittee on Civil Disorder. I'd like to
introduce before we begln heré Senator Harmer, addltionally
a member of the committee, and Senator Ayala, who 1s a new
member of the committee who was appoilnted last week to fill
a vacancy on the commlttee and Senator Wedworth, the other
member, will be along shortly.

This hearing relates to some continuation of
information seeking that the committee 1s concerned with
relative to violence in our prison system and the overflow
thereof into soclety 1n general.

Our penal institutions are now experiencing probably
the worst selge of vlolence in theilr history. In the past
two years we've had over sixty fatalibies lncluding six prison
staff members and more than three hundred stabbings. Indica-
tions are that there are problems, violent problems that we
think deserve our examination.

According to prison authorities, some of whom we
wlll here from today, the majority of these incldents are the
result of activities perpetrated by four major gangs within
the prison and gang members outside the prison and other
revolutlonary groups concentrating on the recrultment of

inmates for radlcal purposes. It appears that these groups
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are hiphly orpanliced and highly motivated as 1indicated by
the continual violence against our system in general and the
prison system in particular.

| The gangs allegedly have gained some control over
illegal activities within the prison and are now attempting
to control street crimes involving such things as narcotics
from within our penal institutions. This indicates that they
have reached an organizational level of some sophistication
and consequently reached a level of violent activities that
constitute a threat to the safety of citizens in general and
criminal justice and the penal system in particular.

Any system of criminal justice and punishment cannot

be permitted to be subverted by the persons who are the objects

of that system, in this case the inmates of penal institutioms. -

It 1s the intention of this subcommittee and with
the very deep COoperation of the California Department of
Corrections and their agencies to determine as fully as
possible the nature and extent of this problem.

‘ Additionally we hope to determine what measures

might be taken by the State Leglslature through recommendations
of this subcommittee to deal effectively with the problem
and either put an end to or learn as much as posslible about
this prison terrorism and related violence inside and outside
the systemeefore 1t becomes an even greater threat,threatening

the well being of all of our citizens.

I'd like to thank the California Department of

]
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- 4ne impetus for btils Lcovestlantlon vy t“his commlt

Corfeétions for tnﬁir cowperabtlon anc ﬁagjstancc n tn2ss
nearines and the informacion thauv nas be&n nrovided has veen
| tic tee. 1 nhovoe
the committee findin~s ana recommsnuatiocons will be of asaistance'
vo tne Deparﬁmen: ang w0 other intarestca'agﬁncies in helping
to control and overcom® thess violent problems.

With that preface I'd like to note that Senator
Wedworth, our fourth member, has arrived and that we wils
go right ahead with th. witnzsses we have scheduied. The
fipst wiltness is Smt. w..iliam Hanklns of the Callfornia
Department of Corrections statloned at San Quentin.

Sgt. Hankins, would you coﬁe forward, please.

Rlease be seated therea. |

Sgt. Hankins, can you tell us a 1ittle blt about your
background and your area of responsibility in the department.

MR. HANKINS: VYes, sir. I've been wilth the Department
of Corrections for seventeen years at San Quentin, the last
eight and a half years spent as the llason offilcer at San
Quentin.

CHAIRMAN CARPEWTER: What does a liason officer do?

MR. HANKINS: Gathering of informatlon, liason with
outside law enfarcemant, various agencies'within our own

department.
CEATIRMAN CALOZEN'UER: Do you have some opening remarks
2t to

W ~ X i T mer van
£ your own that you wiant to naxe or Ao yow merely 1

respond to our questions?



MR. HA?KINS: I dien't prepare a statement. 1
Intended to respond te questions.

CHAIRMAl CAKPENTER: Did you understand the nature
of our inquiry In general relating to the gang violence and
the gang operations within the prison?

MR. HANKINS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: DPerhaps then we could commence

2 T’. ’e = a 15 R ee L 1 I - U- i lt I

MR. HANKINS: Yes. I think the groups we're talking

about are the Mexican Mafila or M.A., Nuestra Familia or the

N.F., the Aryan Brotherhood and the Black Guerrilla Family
We had traces of the Mexlcan Mafia back in 1657 |

.where.it startec at uvuelle Vocational'Institution in Tracy

I, ' ‘ i
, myself, didn't notice too much organization belng formed

untll early '66 at San Quentin. At this time I started

ia
entifying people we had at San Quentin who were 1ldentified

to me as members of the Mexican Mafia
At this time the Mexlcan Mafia, in the early stages.
v « .
iere involved in highjacking of the inmate canteen, petty
)y &
st b ; i |
uff within the institution or dealing in drugs. They always

re
)8) ‘yed on other races, Caucasians and Blacks. They never did

fool. 1 2] C 4
1. with inmales of “nelr own race. Then at San Quentin
after '06 we starced 4 |
we starced naving a series of incidents that was‘
.uirp 4 P o , K <
ccted toward otner iexicans, 'I'he first one that I recall

was
an incident involving Sonny Pina who was assaulted and

Y.

killed by the Mafia members 1in the maln yard at San Quentin.

At this time the rest of the Mexlcan population govb

This was fthe first assault on a Mexlcan
at started

up pretby tight.

inmate. About this time there was another group th

forming which was more or less for self-protection of the

Mexicans. This was the start of %he formation of Nuestra

Familia.

This went on and there was another assault by the

Mexlcan Mafla on another inmate. Agaln, this caused the

other group to enlarge 2 1ittle and prepare for what they

felt, I guess, was the inevitable.

Then we had an incident occur where one of thelr

members was assaulted in the latter part of 1968. When this

occurred this was more or less the straw that broke the camel’'s

pback between the Ttwo groups. The following day members of the

new group, which we now refer £o as the Nuestra Familia, laid

in wait in one of the blocks and when Mafla members returned

from the weekend movlie they were assaulted. I think we ended

up with seventeen people stabbed, one fatally. This 1s where

n the two groups erupted that goes on today.

Nuestra Familla which started to

the war betwee

It was the formation of the

pecome strong from that point on.

When that occurred a lot of your Mafia members were

locked up at this time. That turned the traffic in the main

population %o the other group and they stafted in turn dealing

in narcotlcs.



The Aryan Brotherhood has been around for qulte a
number of years. We've known 1t under dlfferent names. They
were at one time the old Nazi factlon in the prisons. Now
they've branched out and become what we now know as the
Aryan Brotherhood. They have allgned themselves with the
Mexican Mafia 1n the war against the New Family.

We also have the Black Guerrilla ﬁamily which sprung
up recently. I look at 1t as a mixture of blacks from the
Muslims, Black Liberation Army, Republic of New Afrlca, Black
Panther Parﬁy that have bhecome dlsenchanted wlth these gmroups
on the streets that have come together in a prison setting and
they have become the Black Guerrilla Family. They in turn have
aligned themselves with the New Famlly. These are the four
groups that we now are talking about.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, so much for their origmins.
As you see them from the San Quentin poilnt of view, let me
ask you this: Are they -- they all seem to have thelr origins
in ethnic or raciél motivation and identification.

MR. HANKINS:; Well, the make-up of the Mexlican Mafla
is primarlily from the East Los Angeles section. The make-up
of the Nuestra Familia is primarily valley Mexicans with a
heavy concentration in San Jose, Salinas, Santa Barbara areas.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ' Does this geographical ldentifi-
cation before they were in prison have a strong bearing on
what group they intend to associate with? 

MR. HANKINS: 'That's correct.

-6 ’.’

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do any of the other Senators
have questlons on the subject of the origilin.

Senator Wedworth?

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Sergeant, you say you've been
aware of this or San Quentin has been aware of this since
1969, late sixties?

MR. HANKINS: No, I sald this is when if started.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You were aware of that.

MR. HANKINS: I am now. I became aware of 1t in
1966.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That there was a real problem or
that you'd better look into it or what?

MR. HANKINS: No. It was just starting then. It

was the formatlon of the organizatlon.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You mentiloned stabbings and at

least one fatality.
MR. HANKINS: Yes, sir,
SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many of these people have

been charged and tried?

MR. HANKINS: I can't recall.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Have some?

MR. HANKINS: Over the years or are you talking about
the initial incident?

SEMATOR WEDWORTH: Over the years.

MR. HANKINS: Oh, yes, there's been numerous

3

members from both factions trled.
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SENATOR WEDWGRTH: How about a ballpark fipure? When
you say "numerous,” what does that mean? Ten? Twenty?

MR. HANKINS: ©Oh, I would estimate probably twenty-five
or thirty.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: lHave there been convictions?

MR. HANKINS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Thank you very much.

SENATOR AYALA: You mentioned seventeen years. Is
that the total number of years your career spanned at San
Quentin or have you been other places part of that time?

MR. HANKINS: ©No. Seventeen years with the 2epartment
of Correctlons all at San Quentin,

SENATOR AYALA: All at San Quentin.

MR. HANKINS: That's correct.

SENATOR AYALA: You also mentioned that the Mexican
Ma:iia for the most part was centered in a geographlcal area:
East Los Angeles, Salinas, San Jose, Santa Barbara, so forth.
What about the other organizations? Do they have a tendency
to come from geographical areas like the Mexican Mafia?

MR. HANKINS: Well, I said the Mexican Mafia came
primarily from: the East Los Angeles aréa. The New Family came

from the valley area. |

SENATOR AYALA: Oh. Also the Aryan Brotherhood,
you mentioned -- I didn't catch something about the Nazi

prisoners. What 1s the connectlon between the two?

MR. HANKINS: I sald the Aryan Brotherhcod we can go

8

back to the same type of people we knew through the years in
prlson pangs. ‘They graduated from one to the other such as
the Bluebird Gang into what we knew as the old Nazi Party and
into the Aryan Brotherhood.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Harmer?

SENATOR HARMER: Sergeant, we had testimony at a
prior hearing of other groups that exlsted which I notice
you haven't mentioned. Is there some reason Tor your not
making reference to any other group, or in your opinion are
they not worth the trouble or are these groups you mentlioned
the only ones we're concerned with?

MR. HANKINS: Well, these are the four major prison
groups. We do have other groups within the prison such as %he
Muslims, but these are the four groups that I mentiloned
because they are the four that we are having difficulty with.

SENATOR HARMER: Let me ask you specifically: Is
the Symbionese Liberation Army at San Quentin? .

MR. HANKINS: I ~--

SENATOR HARMER: Let me preface the statement,
Sergeant. I know that you requested not to be asked guestlons
about the activities of the S.L.A, and I don't intend to
pursue 1t. I simply want to know if they exist at San Quentin.

MR, HANKINS: There is a connection. |

SENATOR HARMER: Thank you.

CHAIRNEN CARPENTER: Sergeant, let me ask you some

thing about these groups and their relationship to other
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institutions in California. I think we can take notice of
the fact that they exlst in all the various felony institutions
at least or maximum sccurity institubions. Is part of your
responsibility the question of communication between members
of these gangs a¥b Sa? Quentin and other institutions in
California? And how is this communication carried out?

| MR. HANKINS: Communication between the inmate groups
is carried out in a number of ways: through visltors, letter
writing, through mail drops, they use coded terms 1n thelr
letters, newspaper publications from the underground-type
newspapers. Many, many ways. Through certain attorneys
that have contact throughout the system.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What about communication between
inmates who are members of the gangs and street members who
are discharged who are out of prison and so forth.

MR. HANKINS: There stlll are communicatlons carried
on through the mails and through visits.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Okay. I'm trylng fto get at
the issue of the nature of the relationship between the
inside group and the outside group. Is there a responsibility
of the department to follow the outslde activities?

MR. HANKINS: Yes. We work in liason with outside
1law enforcement. Is this what you're getting at? If we
continue to pass on informatlion thét we may gather from out-

side agencles --

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, let's get 1nto this issue:

~10-

We have been told in prior hearings that the flow of iInformation
elther throuph attorneys, wives and friends and obther visitors
and the mall and so forth constlftuted a very substantlal amount
of the communicatlon process. What Inspection rights does the
Department have now on incoming mall? What Inspection rights
does it have relative to attorneys bringing thelr briefcases,
thelr legal documents and so forth into the prison., Could you
explain for us what limitatlons there are?

MR. HANKINS: We are allowed censorship of the mall
but not attorney mail. Aftorney mall is not inspected under
2600 of the Penal Code. Publications that are sent in are
inspected.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Excuse me, You say attorney
maill 18 not inspected. What constitutes attorney mail? Are
you talklng aboubt an envelope with a letter in 1% or what 1f
it's a box?

MR, HANKINS: You can open these in front of the
inmate 1f you have reason to inspect them. You have to open
them in front ef the inmate,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Well, I assume in the case of
a box or a carton you would do that as a matter of course?

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. Attorney mall has
to be signed by the attorney and designated as legal mail.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: If l1s signed on the outside
of the envelope so you know?

MR, HANKINS: That's correct.

~1l-



CHALIKMAN CARPENLEK: How do you know the person
sipning is a lawyer? I8 his name repistered with you, wlth
the department?

MR. HANKINS: Well, the ones that we aren't sure are
lawyers we check with the Bar Association. They should have
a copy of their signature on file at the institution.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: If they desire to be corresponding
with an inmate. Do they have to have an attorney-client
relationship with a specific inmate?

MR. HANKINS: No, they do not in all cases.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Then anybody who happens to be
a lawyer in our society can write any inmate in the prison
any‘time he wants to or send him aﬁything he wants to through
this privilege without restriction.

MR. HANKINS: That's correct.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Does thét pose a problem with
regard to these gangs?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, 1t does.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 1Is 1t your interpretation of
the Penal Code that they have that right as you currently
practice it irrespective of any attorney-cllent privilege
or relationship?

MR. HANKINS: These are the rules that are handéd
down to us.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Are you familiar with an

organizaflion known as Venceremos?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I am.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: Could you tell us something
about 1t?

MR. HANKINS: Well, the Venceremos came into being
around 1970, '71. It had splintered off from a group known
as The Revolutionary Union. When they splintered off under
the leadership of H. B. Franklin their beliefs were that the
Revolutionary Union was too slow moving in that the Revolution-
ary Union's thinking was that they believed in revolution in
this countiry and the armed overthrow of this country, but
they felt that 1t would take fifteen years to effect this.
During thils fifteen-year time span they bellieved thelr time
should be spent in infiltrating the working ranks and
gathering more followers as they went.

The Venceremos Organization felt thils was too slow
moving. They felt that revolution cculd be effected within
a three-year time span. At this time they planned usiﬁg the
Black Panther Partykas the armed vanguard of the revolution.
Thelr plans called for mass demonstrations, sniping of police
stations, bombing of buildings, etec.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Before you go further with that.
When we talk about them in this context you say that the
revolutionary éroups are advocating violent overthrow and
so forth, can you relate that to these organizations or to
inside prison activities and the violence. Ikmean, do they

recrult inmates during their incarceration or what have you?
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MR. HAWKING: Correct. This is what I was about %to
zet into.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: (o ahead.

)( MR. HANKINS: 'There was a tie between known Venceremos
Urpanlization members and certain inmatie leaders of varlous
groupa. I'm speaking of the Mexican Mafia and Nuestra Familia.
They were 1n ¢communication through letters and visits trying
to recrult inmates into thelr groups. I think that their
feeling was they would like to bring the two groups together,
get a truce effected between the two groups and have them
come together under their leadership, under their director.

CHATRMAN CARPENTEK: Where does all that stand today,
if you know?

MR. HANKINS: Of course, the Venceremos Organization
has publicly said that they had disbanded, there was a éplit
in the group. I believe 1t has gone on.to something under

‘ artfother name now.

A CHATRMAN CARPENTER: How would an organization like

Venceremos or any other go about recruiting a prisoner? Have

you had an opportunity to observe this process?

M”tfﬁ? MR. HANKINS: Yes. One of the main ways 1s through

women in the organlzation. All these groups on the outside
have many women members. They use them to start up a

correspondence wlth an inmate, get on his visifing list and
sbart visiting him. Of course, we're speaking about people

who have been locked up six, seven, elght years. It doesn't

~14.-
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take long for a puy to bulld up an emotional attachment and
ret involved with her to where he becomes almost like a puppet
on a string.

- CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I've Observed that that can

happen in a few minutes and on the outslde. But I think we

get your point.
Are there other recrulting procedures or devices
that you have observed that have been successful?
MR. HANKINS: I think a lot of these problems lead
through promises of legal help, promises of help to get them
onto the streets, promises of help on the streets once they

are there,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: To your knowledge do they deliver

on these promises?
MR. HANKINS: Not to my knowledge, no,
CHAIRMAN CARPEyTER: What about the prowvision of legal

asslstance to the inmate? T suppose 1t's traditionally been

- true that people in long term incarceration have incréased

their activites relative to appeals and reopenlng of cases and
things of this nature. Are there any organlzations of which
you're aware who are active 1n asslsting inmates in this
regard that are related to these organizations jou‘re

discussing?

MR. HANKINS: Well, certain elements of the National

Lawyer's Guild work in thils manner.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, the National Lawyer's

~15-



Gulld has come up in our prior testimony, too. The National
Lawyers Guild, 1s this a group who would utilize their staff
attorneys or members to contact prisoners without having been
approached and requested to represent them?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I believe this is the case.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: In other words, they --

MR. HANKINS: In most cases,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The National Lawyer's Guild
solleclts ah inmate %o become a client, is that correct?

MR. HANKINS: This 1s what I've been told.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do they come fo your institution
regularly?

MR. HANKINS: Quifte regularly.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Would a lawyer from that
organizatlion or any other merely come to San Quentin and say,
T want to see a prilsoner, any prlsoner, or does he come and
say, 'I want to see John Doe," and John Doe doesn't know him
or has never heard of the attorney but he responds and comes
and vislts with him; 1s that correct?

MR. HANKINS: This has happened, yes. Mo prior
contact,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Have there been cases atv San
Quentin where attorneys have been proven to bring contraband,
whether 1t be narcotlcs or any other thing that's prohibited
by the institution or actually arms cr other escape tools, to

prisoners?

-16-~ .

MR. HANKINS: Well, we have a case right now that's
under appeal that I'm sure you're aware of in which this was
indicated., We had a recent incident. This was strike
informatign being brought into San Quentin by a member of
the National Lawyer's Guild office in San Francisco. She was
stopped at one of the gates and they made a check of the
material she was bringing in and this was found. Strike demands
that she was carrying into the institution.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do we have a copy of this, Mr.
Neal?

MR, NEAL: We don't have a copy of that.

MR, HANKINS: I brought this for you,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Fine, We'll take that, please.

AReferring back to a case I'm sure we're all more
familiar with? the George Jackson case. Was there an attorney
involved in the introduction of a weapon in that case?

MR, HANKINS: Yes, thls case ié still going.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What do you mean "golng"? Has
there been an arrest or an allegation made? |

MR. HANKINS: There wefe six inmates indicted and
one attorney who has never been found. Recently the indictments
were thrown out and that case 1s presently under appeal, that
decision. | |

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The missing attorney is Mr,
Bingham; 1s that correct?

MR. HANKINS: That's correct.

-17-



CHALRMAN CARPENTER: And 1t was alleped that he
brought the gun in Lhat Mr., Jackson had in hils possession:
18 that correct?
MR. HANKINS: That's correct.
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Any other members have any
questions at this point?
| SENATOR AYALA: Yes. 1I'd like to pursue one statement
that the sergeant made that any mall received by an inmate
with an attorney's signature on the envelope will not be
opened other than one who is involved in an attorney-client
relationship. You were aSked if this is pabt of the Penal
Code. You said this 1s the orders we have or something to
that effect. Who gives that order that only mall received
fnop_attorneys,is not subject to inspection?
MR. HANKINS: The Director of Corrections hands down
his administrative orders as to his interpretation of 2600
of the 'Penal Code,
;.- SENATOR AYALA: Is any mail that 1s received by an
inmate ththis slgned on the Qutgidemby an attorney, no matter

who he may be, will that be opened?

. .-MR, HANKINS: You. can open it under certain conditlions.

Again, you.can open 1t 1f you have reason to feel there may be
a weapon or something in it, You can open it in the presence
of the inmate and open 1t,1n such a manner that you can
inspect 1t but‘can{t read the contents, such as, opening 1t

and holding 1t upside. down,

~18-

SENATOR AYALA: This is at the direction of the
Director of Corrections?
MR. HANKINS: That's correct.
| SENATOR HARMER: Sergeant, are you familiar with the
type of literature that is commonly distributed from the

outside?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, sir. I have brought some examples
of Thils for the committee.

SENATOR HARMER: Does that literature have any type
of a common theme?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, it's all of a radical nature.

SENATOR HARMER: How do you mean "radical"? You mean
it's committed to some speclfic activity?

MR. HANKINS: Well --—

SENATOR HARMER: Violence or revolution?

MR. HANKINS: A lot of it advocates violence, Marxist
type stursr.

SENATOR HARMER: Does 1t seem to have a common Sdurce,
the literature itselfr?

MR. HANKINS: Well, several sources. .

SENATOR HARMER: Could you show us what you're talking
about or could you éxplain that?

MR. HANKINS: Here are some neWSpépers that I brought
and I have them cataloged in the order'tﬁat they appear here,
The conspiracy which came in in an envelope from the National

Lawyer's Guild. Written on the envelope‘was "legal paper,"
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but 1t was in effect a copy of the newspapef The Conspiracy.
Also a publication called Revolution which is published by
the Revolutionary Unlon out of Chicago.lllinois. Strupggle
came from Boston, Massachusetts. 'There are many, many
articles In here authored by Black Liberation Army Members.

SENATOR HARMER: What do these articles seek to
accomplish? Are they advocating that the reclpients organilze
themselves 1nto some type of movement, organization; that they
engage in some type of militant or violent conduct?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I'd like to -- this particular
publication is called Midnight Special. It 1s published by
the National Lawyer's Gulld, New York Chapter. 1In here on
page 12’you will find an article under Maryland where they
are talking about prison personnel and I'll read from here
if you don't mind.

"The type of people that we have to deal wilth
are very vulnerable. They go to parties, clubs and so on.
‘They chase women, sleep,drive cars and go to the movies. They
have familles. One of our righteocus thinking sisters could
lead one of them ﬁo a predesignated spot for execution., Thelr
cars can be wired. They can be drugged in bars by righteous
bartenders. They can be followed’into movlie bathrooms and get
their throats cut. Word can be sent out following every
assault on an inmate. The assaults would soon stop 1f, say,
Officer X beats Inmate A on Monday and a firebomb is fthrown

through the windoy of Officer X's home on Tuesday night, or
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1f his wife 1s visited while he 1s working, or if his kid is
snatched from school and his head is found in front of the
jail. I am serious about thls. The situation 1s such now
that death is no longer unusual."

This 1s one of the types of publications.

SENATOR HARMER: ~Tell me how that got into the

prison?

MR. HANKINS: It was malled in.

SENATOR HARMER: PFrom the National Lawyer's Gulld?

MR. HANKINS: From the National Lawyer's Guild.

SENATOR HARMER: Was it marked "legal paper"?

MR. HANKINS: No, it wasn't.

SENATOR HARMER: Just mailed in to an inmate from
the Natlonal Lawyer's Guild?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, 1t was.

SENATOR HARMER: Was that theme an ordinary theme
in this type of material?

MR. HANKINS: Pretty much so, yes. They are very
aware of the restrictions we have on handling thls type of
stuff. They know wheré the fine 1line 1s but they stlll have a
way of getting the message across.

SENATOR HARMER: Does this literature which you
have contéin theme of vliolence against others in our soclety
besides the penal institution officials and guards?

MR. HANKINS: Yes.

' SENATOR HARMER: Such as political figures or

businesses?
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MR. HANKINS: Yes. This was picked up. This comes
from the Black Liheration Army in New York. Of course, this
one 1s talking all about killing the police on the streets.
How 1t should be done. I also brought this along for your
inspection. This particular magazine is written by the
reglonal office staff of the Bay Area Nati&ﬁél Lawyer's Guild
called Legal First Aid, and 1t's instructing people how to
handle themselves when approache¢ by police. It tells them
such things as "Keep your weapons hidden. Evéryone in the
house should know where they are and if they are legal and
if they are loaded. People visiting as straﬁgers do not need
to know that you have weapons. Large stores of weapons should
be in a very safe place like 1n a house that could not bte
linked to the movement."

SENATOR HARMER: Is there anything in this material
which elther advocates or calls for acts of sabotage agalnst
any facllitles in the community,ﬁgbvernmental Institutions or
public utilities or transportation systems?

MR. HANKINS: Not in this report, no.

SENATOR HARMER: Thils 1s not then necessarily a
common theme in the 1iteratufe that these groups use?

MR. HANKINS: Well, this is just one publication.
They put out many.

SENATOR HARMER: Well, your answer is that it's
not in that hook?

MR. HANKINS:‘ That's correct.

SENATOR HARMER: But in the literature that comes to
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these indlviduals from various oubtside groups, 1s a theme

in that literature the carrying out of acts of sabotage agalnst
our soclety, agalnst the transportation system, governmental
entities, or agalinst corporations?

MR. HANKINS: Well, sir, certaln papers, yes. I
wouldn't vehture to say all of them hecause again they know
what i1s permissible and what i1s not permlssible.

SENATOR HARMER: You spoke to us ahout the origin
of these groups. How would you estimate or would you care to
estimate the trends that we can project down the next several
years regarding these groups? Do you see them growing? Do
you see them hecoming a matter of greater concern for us? Do
you feel they are contained? Would you say that it would be
necessary for us to try to have a more specific policy to come
to grips with them or do you feel that they do not constitute
that much of a threat?

MR. HANKINS: They definitely constltute a threat.
Are we talking about numbers in the various groups?

SENATOR HARMER: If you can or care to do so.

MR. HANKINS: Now, when I mentioned numbers belong-
ing to certain groups, these are members that I've known over
the years. They may be out on the street. They're people that
I have run across or had information on over the years and
I'm sﬁeaking of a period of the last eight, nine years. I'm
talking about sympathlzers, also. Not just hardcore members,
but sympathizers. I number the Mexican Mafla in the area of

700. The Nuestra Familia in the area of 500, and the Aryan
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Brotherhood in the area of 400.
On the Black Guerllla Family I'm golng on informa-

tion from lnmate sources that estimate thelr number as hlgh
as 1250. |

SENATOR HARMER: Does membership in the group
continue after the indlyidual leaves the institution?

MR. HANKINS: Yes.

SENATOR HARMER: We had testimony.at a prior hearing
that several of these groups force members to stay in it at
the threa% of their lives and with threats on their families
if they do not stay in the group and then do not actively
organlze from the outside to assist members of the group on
the inside of the institutions. Is that consistent with your
knowledge of these groups?

'MR. HANKINS: Yes, it is.

SENATOR HARMER: Do you have any specific examples
of where individuals other than the National Lawyer's Guild,
more specifically, where a former 1inmate member of one of the
groups has been released from the institution and has particil-~
pated on the outside in the organizing of actlvity to ald the
inmates in the institution or continue on the program of the
group on the outside?

'MR. HANKINS: Yes, I am aware of this, but I believe
you have another witness comlng that can cover this better.

SENATOR HARMER: . All right. Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, can I pursue another line? How's the

time?
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CHALRMAN CARPENTER: - We're on schedule.

SENATOR HARMER: There's one other item that I'd
like to find out about. I'd like to find out about the
activities of the groups inside. You made reference to thelr
control of narcotic traffic. We have also had testimony that
it is a practice of these groups to identify known homosexuals
and to actually own them and trade the homosexuals among them-
selves as a piece of property and to use them in other ways.

Is that type of activity to your knowledge common among these
groups?

MR. HANKINS: It has occurred. I wouldn't say 1t was
common, but 1t does occur.

SENATOR HARMER: Are you rérerring both to narcotics
and homosexual activity?

MR. HANKINS: Primarlly the homosexual activity thau
you were talking about.

SENATOR HARMER: What ahout the narcotic activity?
Where do they get the drugs and narcotics? How do they get
this materlal?

MR. HANKINS: Are you talking about inslde?

SENATOR HARMER: Yes, I meant inslde the institutlon?

MR. HANKINS: One of the maln ways that it comes
into San Quentin 1s through visitors. A female visltor cbmes
in to visit her husband, hoyfriend and she wlll come in and
she wlll have two or three balloons 1n her mouth. We allow
them to embrace, kiss. §8he transfers them fo him, He swallows

them. When he gets back to hls cell, he regurgltates or passes
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them through n bowel movement.

SENATOR HARMER: And the balloon has in 1t the drug
or narcotic?

MR. HANKINS: Of course, if you have reason to
suspect the visitor and you approach to search her, she will
swallow them.

SENATOR HARMER: Surely there must be some other way.
I can't imagine that there's that much kissing going on in
prisons. |

MR. HANKINS: There's quite a number of visitors.
This is Jjust one source.

SENATOR HARMER: Can you name some other .sources.

I dldn't mean to be facetious, Sergeant. I'm sure it's a
problem and I assume you have all sorts of problems trying to
determine who has balloons ﬁnder their tongue.

There must be some'other mechanism.

MR. HANKINS: Oh, yes, you have traffic in and out
of vehlcles carrying produce, other articles into the prison
for delivery. We have had cases of narcotics stashed in these
trgcks.‘ This is another source. We have drops made arcund the
prison. You do have inmates out working in thé areas that pick
it up and tranqurt it on in by various means.

SENATOR HARMER: All right. A final question for
me,’Sergeant, although there are others 1'd like to pursue.

I think I've taken more than my sharé of the time.
Would you care to comment on what you think we ought

to recommend to the Legislature in terms of coming to grips
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with the cmerpence now of these organlzatlons, the llteratuve
that 1is belny; suppllied to them, the type‘of actilylty which
they are engaged 1in?

MR. HANKINS: Well, I think thls 1s something that
had best be answered by the Director and his staff. We made
our recommendations to him and I'm sure he's prepared to get
the message across.

SENATOR HARMER: A very judicious answer.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Sergeant, the suggested number
of members in these four organizations that we're deallng wlth,
did I understand those to be just in Jan Qﬁéntin or in total
around the State? |

MR. HANKINS: In total.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; Among all the institutlons?

MR. HANKINS:; And on the street. ‘;

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And that's in how many institu-
tions iﬁ California?

MR. HANKINS: Ten, T think I'm talking about.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ‘Are these organlzations

restricted to California?

MR. HANKINS: I have indicatilons théy are spreading
to other States. I'm quite certaln that there is Mafia in
the Federal Prison in Marion, Illinois. There's Mafla at
McNeal Island in Washington, and I'm quite certain there is
also Mafia at Leavenworth.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What 1s the impact of somevof

this information on a prisoner who is a longtimer? Maybe he's
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there for a violent c¢rime. If you can give us your opinion
and your ohservations of the impact of thilis type of supgested
violence? How to murder people. liow to murder policemen.

MR. HANKINS: 1 look at 1t as a hralnwashing
vehlcle with thesebpeople, and of course, we're speaking of
minorities Iin numbers. When we talk about the people that
this 18 reaching, I'd say we're talking about 7 to 10 per cent.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Seven to ten per cent of the
inmate population?

MR. HANKINS: That's right.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: That's a pretty healthy per-
centage.

MR. HANKINS: That 1is a pretty healthy percentage.
I think when I was back. in Washington appearing before a
simllar-type commlittee, information came out back there that
a full-scale riot at Leavenworth was the result of 30 men who
called the shots; 20 to 30 men who actually controlled.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right; Let me finally
ask you, Sgti Hankins, wlith regard to the literature of this
type which is, I think by anyhody's definition not lawyer's
materlal, 1t's Just publications probably calculated to
inclte the passions or violent intentions of inmates or to
prey on ﬁhem in some way. Why do you let that material in?
Why does it get into the prisoner's hands? Is it department
policy or interpretatlion that they are obligated to permit
that stuff to flow in the prisons?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I'm sure we have a law to follow.

28
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The Director hands down hls policy on this and, of course,
they're as aware as we are. They know the finé liné, how far
they can go. There's many, many things myself that I would
look at and not helng as well versed 1n this particular law as
the Director, I'd say it should go in. We do allow 1t because
we have to.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, you talked about female
visitors passing narcotics by kissing their hushands or the
person they're visiting. We've hal other department people
tell us or at least they have told me that they can carry 1t
in their vaginas or there 1s rectal carrying of narcotics and
so forth. Why do you permlt the contact? Is 1t the depart-
ment's feeling that the actual physical contact of prisoners
is necessary?

It seems to me they are always separated by glass
or other devices.

MR. HANKINS: Well, thls is true. We're talking
about a small number of neople that carry on this type of
activity, and I think the department's feeling 1s that because
of this small group, are you golng to punish the entire
population? ‘

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, because of a small group
the entire population submits itself to a search. before
boarding an airplane and it isn't 7 to 10 per cent of the |
population like it is in ﬁhe prison»population.

MR, HANKINS: I agree wlth what you're saying, myself.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth?
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SENATOR WEDWORTH: Yes. Sergeant, we had
previous testimony about the lawyers involved in this. No
names. How many lawyers to your knowledge have vislted or
operated at San Quentin?

MR. HANKINS: Again, you're talking about lawyers
and thelr staff and invesfigators. At San Quentin I would
number 1t in the area of probahly 10 to 15.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: 10. I don't think we had that
question at the previous meeting. Thank you.

Now, do you think there's adequate statutes to
control this group within the prisons?

MR. HANKINS: No, I do not.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You do not. You mentioned
visits and Senator Carpenter got on to that. The type of
narcotics and the amounts in the previous testimony indicates
that there's a substantial amount of narcotics within the
prison system and you mentioned how some of it comes in. How
many visits would you estimate that you have per day at
San Quentin where this bodily contact is allowed?‘

MR. HANKINS: Well, I wouldn't know the exact
flgures. As I recall, at one time I overheard visiting
personnel talking ahout a ‘monthly number of visits, and it
seemed to me 1t was around 2800 visits.

JENATOR WEDWORTH: 2,800?

- MR, HANKINS: Yes.
SENATOR WEDWORTH: That was a contact-type of vyisit,

personal contact?
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MR. [HIANKINS: No, I cduldn't spllt 1t up. "The
majorlty are personal contact.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do you conslder or belleve that
you have good communicatlon within thls system from the
Director down to among the employees of the prison?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, we have pretty good communication.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: It seems to me 1llke I'm picking
up some gaps here someplace 1n your testimony. Like the people
that handle the visitors, for instance. Do you have good
contact with those people so you know how many are coming in
or 1n your seml or at least undercover-type of work, do you
relate to these people that handle these visltors?

MR. HANKINS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: To be on the lookout for certaln
people at certain times?

MR. HANKIN3: Yes, I do.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And do you give other offilclals
within the institutlon that information, also?

MR. HANKINS: Yes, T do.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then I would think that you have
a pretty good idea of the exact numbers,ydon't you?

MR. HANKINS: vNo, I don't really get 1into the number
of visits. Agaln, we're just talking ahout a small group.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: What percentage of narcotics that
enter this institution would you say, by welght or any way you
want to put it, through the typé of visits that ha?e the bodlly

contact?
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MK. HANKINS: Well, I think one way of possibly
explaining this -- I think whatAyoﬁ're getting at, you're
concerned with how much narcotics can a person carry in their
mouth and transfer.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: As to the total amount that I'm
told are within the institutions.

MR. HANKINS: You may‘have a number‘of people
involved in the same thing that come up from, say, Los
Angeles all in the same car that visit different inmates that
are all wlth the same group.

They all will in turn transfer narcotics. Whether
1t be three or four balloons, whatever it may be. Where you
end up with maybe an ounce delivered inside.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: A total of one ounce among a
group of say four in a car?

MR. HANKINS: Possibly, yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many ounces per day or.per
month do you believe enter through this type of visit? A
pound or whatever you have?

MR. HANKINS: I couldn't give you a safe estimate.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many pounds do you think
enter this institution within a month or a week?

MR. HANKINS: I would have no way really of giving
you a good, safe figure. I know if wouldn't be anywheres near
a pound. : :

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, you know we need to nall

down as closely as we can some exact figures so we'll be able
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to maybe come up wlth some answeprs as to how much each group
is bringing in. You don't know?
. MR. HANKINS: I'm unable to answer that for you.
SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many people wlthin the
institution do you think use narcotics?
You know how many prisoners you have there as of

this morning, whenever you mustered them or made a check?

Somebody did.

MR. HANKINS: Well, a large percentage have used
narcotics over the years.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, let's use 1973. T think
you should by now at least have some statistics on 1973 because
this is almost Aprll. What percentage in 1973 of the inmates
do you think were users of narcotics?

MR. HANKINS: Again, I can't answer this question
for you. I don't keep these kinds of statistics.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How about a guess? You're out
there working, you're undercover. You get a lot of informa-
tion, I'm sure. Ten per cent, 40, 60, 70?

MR. HANKINS: T couldn't answer.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Just can't answer that. How

- many vehlcles a day, per day enter the instlitution?

MR. HANKINS: Agaln, this is outside my area.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Yes, but you sald you had a
communication system that was. adequate or sﬁfficient or good
wlthin the system at that one institutlon.

MR. HANKINS: . There's no way yoﬁ can really pin down

~33-



the number of vyehicles that enter the prison on a glven day.
SENATOR WEDWORIH:  Officetal vehleles?  'Thoewro's no
way you could do that?

MR. HANKINS: I couldn't, no. They keep a log of

vehlcles that come in. They keep this information, but I don't

have it,

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, you're an expert on this

and you're here testifying. I'd hoped that yoﬁ might have mocre

information than you do, Sergeant.

MR. HANKINS: I do not work that much in the
narcotics fileld.

SENATOR WEDWOQRTH: We had a previous hearing and
we're getting some information from other areas. Now you've
come as an official and it would be beneflcial to this

Committee 1f we had some ballpark figures. I'm not asking

for names, I'm not asking for how many were there on the 18th

of June, 1973. I'm not asking for that, but I think if we had
Just some estimates 1t would be helpful.

MR. HANKINS: Well, I'm still unable to give those.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You still don't 4~ that?

MR. HANKINS: No, I don't.

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: Thank you.

Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Sgt. Hankins, one final ques-
tion from me. I presume on occasions during yilsitations you
intercept weapons or narcotics or other coﬁtrahand comingkin;

1s that not the case?
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MR. MANKIND:  Yes.

CUATRMAN CARPENTI:  What 1 Lhe procedure when
thls occurs?

MR. HANKINS: It's treated as a felony. It's
handled by a disciplinary committee and referral is made to
the District Attorney's Offlce.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: This would be Marin County
in your case?

MR. HANKINS: That's correct.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Well, Sgt. Hankins , we
appreciate very much your coming down to help throw spme light
on this issue for us, and we get kind of discouraged in the
lLegislature sometimes, but I've already made my m;nd up when
T leave this job I don't want yours, either.

Thank you very much for appearing here today .

Mr. Paul Morris, please.

My. Morris, you are the Deputy Superintendent of
the Soledad facility, 1s that correct?

MR. MORRIS: Yes, sir.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have a statement?

MR. MORRIS: No, sir.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You want to go on questlons?

MR. MORRIS: Yes, Sir.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Can you tell us what problems
arise in the administration in a penal institution by’virtue
of this gang aétiviﬁy that we're discussing here today?

MR. MORRIS: Well, there are a number of them. I
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guess the begt place to start would be that an institution
is operated along formal lines and, of course, thesce under-
ground groups or these disruptive groups have an informal or
are more or less an informal force within the institution.

They often run counter to the institution's pro-
cedures and policies. They put pressure on men. They cause
us problems in terms of programming people and keeping people
on the line that are afrald of them or that they're pressur-
ing.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: I can't hear very well and I'd
like to ask you to speak up.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: I think there 1s some problem.
Pull this other mlcrophone over, too. Please speak up, Mr.
Morris.

MR. MORRIS: I'1ll speak up.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Please, if you would, because the
people in'bhe audlence would like to hear this, too.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Proceed.

MR. MORRIS: And this informal operation throughout
the institution 1s running counter to what we would like to
have wlthin the institutlon. They pose a serious threat to
other inmates and oftentimes staff, and just in general, you
know, their nature of themselves 1s as it would be on the
stréets, as a syndicate that's throwing its weight around.

» CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We have had testimony from
inmates that indicate to us that there is a pervasive atmos-

phere of terror inside the prison that exists because of this
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gang activity. Would you think that's a fair description?

MR. HANKINS: Falr?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: That the inmates have fear and
terror?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: It's falrly understandable when
more than three hundred stahbings have occurred in a fairly
short period of time. What's the reaction of your personnel,
your guard staff and so forth? What problems does this
create? |

MR. MORRIS: That's hard to evaluate. As Sgt.
Hankins pointed out to you earlier in this artlcle he read
from that newspaper, we also recelved that. The Superintendent
received that ﬁimeographed anonymously through the mail,k
excerpt. The staff were aware of this, you know, they're
aware of that newspaper and 1t's wvery hard to evaluate or
calculate the effect it has on them.

Tt must have an effect. They must understand that's
making their Job more difficult; Threats against them
personally and/or their famllies are something that they've
had to learn to live with. It's obviously had a negative
effect.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Could you observe anything
about the 1impact it might have on recruiting the best
gquallified people'to work in the prison staff?

MR. MOKRIS: Oh, yes. Interestingly, we have sent

recruiting teams out and we gather up a group whether through
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an employment agency or one thing and another, and we'll talk
to them. And we've often had the name of the place -- you
know, the proper name of the place is the correctional
training facllity. 8o the tralning team would be talking
about the correctional training facllity and somebody in the
audience would say, is that anyWhere near Solédad or words

to thils effect, and when the recruiting team said that is
Soledad, you could see the effect.

This is dying down a little because, you know, no
staff has been killed there 1n the last two and a half years,
last couple onyears, so 1t's getting better. Two and a half
years ago when a member of staff had been killed in the
preceding six months 1t was bad, very bad.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: May I?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You say it has 1mproved at this
institution. Is that because of a change in the way in whilch
the institution handles these people?

MR. MORRIS: You're talking about the ~-

SENATOR WEDWORTH: There's less klllings, less
stabblngs and you're proud that there's heen -~ and I am, too,
that the staff has not been attacked as often or hasn't heen
attacked at all. |

MR. MORRIS: Well, I think -~

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Is that because of a change 1n
attitude of the staff?

MR. MORRIS: T think we have exerciséd more control.

~38=

L4

SENATOR WEDWQRTH: More control?
MR. MORRIS: We've heen very careful, very careful.

We try not to put anybody on our line that we deem to be a

. threat to inmates or staff. Now, when I say somebody -+«

SENATOR WEDWORTH: So the answer is more control.
That helped the situatlon.

MR. MORRIS: Yes, 1t did.

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: I wonder why ycu didn't do 1t

before®

MR. MORRIS: Well, I wasn't there hefore.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Oh, somehody else was there
before?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Okay. Thank you. That's the
point.

MR. MORRIS: Could I respond to jJust a little bit
more on that?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Surely.

MR. MORRIS: It wasn't all control elther. A lot off
it was spending much time developing some relationships,
communicating. We communicated with groups. We communicated
as best we could.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Inmates, you mean?

MK. MORRIS: 1Inmate groups, yes. We communicated
evern with the type of groups llke the Famllia and the Mafila.
We told them what they could expect if they didn't get along.

You know, just the facts of 1ife. The méetings weren't Just
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threatening meetings. We Just sald, "If you continue to get
along, things will be all right. If you don't get along,
there's going to be a large number of people locked down as a
result of 1it."

SENATOR AYALA: You say this didn't happen before.
In prior years thls didn't happen, this communication?

MR. MORRIS: No, I'm not saying that at all. It
was done before. I think the problem on the Mafia and the
Familia developed after I arrived there. I don't think the
major problems in the State were there prior to that time.

We ought to separate something now. I believe the
majority of the killings of staff prior to my arfival at
Soledad were attributed to Black militants, not the Chicano

_groups.

SENATOR AYALA: How long have you been with the
Department of Correctlons, sir? "

MR. MORRIS: 23 years.

SENATOR AYATLA: And at Soledadbtwo, two and a half?

MR, MORRIS: No, three years in June.

SENATOR AYALA: VWhat other institutions have you
served in?

MR. MORRIS: I started out at San Quentin 23 years
ago. I served as a Sergeant at Tehachapi, a Camp Lieutenant
out of CiN, a Captain in the narcotic program -— that's at
Norco now. I served as a jail inspector put of Sacramento.

I was program administrator at Camp Sierra for fivé years;

and then I spent a year as an associate superintendent down at
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Chino Just before I came up here. As a matter of Fact, I met
you down there. |

SENATOR AYALA: That was at the prison.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Was senator Ayala an inmate?

SENATOR AYALA: Mr. Morris, the informal activity
that you réferred to that was on the increase, the stabbings

and murders; this has decreased in the last few Years, is that

correct, where you're stationed at?

MR. MORRIS; No.

SENATOR AYALA: Just on the personnel itself, the
correctional officers?

I was under the Impression that you felt that the
activity had decreased ang the reason was because now you're
communicgting and there's more enfgrcement or more he1p f0f
you.

MR. MORRIS: Well, what I really mean to convey --
we're talking about two different things. First, we start
talking about the officers being killed there which with the
last staff member and the National Socilalist White People's
Party claims responsibility for that in communications with us
after we arrived there. That was the program administrator
that was killed. It was the last staff member killed there.

Now, the others were militant Blacks. The Chicano
problem secmed %o develop and come to a head Throughout the
department and we are feellng our share of it there at Soledad
in the past’couple of years. We've had our assaults there.

And we've had our deaths there, inmate deaths. So we're
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talking about two different things. Staff deaths 1s what we
gtarted out talking about. We've had the inmate deaths.

We have had five deaths at the north facility. We have two
facilities there, north and central. There have been four
deaths at central. These were involved with the group
activities with a couple of excéptions that didn't appear to
be. They were just a spur of the moment kind of thing.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Morris, what is the basic
educationgl requirement for a staff person such as a guard or
those who have contact with the prisoners?

MR. MORRIS: Weil, he has to have a high school
diploma. This qualifies him to take the examination and go
before an oral board. There's a large number of young men now
who have assoclate of arts degrees, who are applying. And
speaking as one who.sits on this type of interview panel, the
hiring panel, the higher the education, the more likely fthe man
1s to get put on the list, obviously.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes'. How long a period of time
does the tralning program that you undertake encompass?

MR. MORRIS: Well, it's an ongolng program.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The man goes right to work and
then he 1is exposed to other activities and training on the
Job?

MR. MORRIS: Right. ©For the first week he doesn't
do anything but_get oriented to the job. fhen within the
First few weeks or first few months -- now that we're catching

up ~- the men have to spend a week of training at an academy

.
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and there he gets his 832 training out of the Penal Coge
which 1s required by the Penal Code, the peace officer and how
to handle a gun training.

He has regular classes ﬂé's required to attend each
month that are hasic. The bulk of the training centeprs on the
sergeants and lieutenants on the watch who are reguired to
spend time with the man and tell him how to function in the
particular position he's assigned to.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, is there any time during
the training prior to employment or on the joh =~ do you have
any training in the philosophy of révolutionary doctrine and
things like this, the kind of exposure your prisoners get
from the documents we've seen?

" MR. MORRIS: Oh, yes, we have clagses on Just
about anything that would help the officers do their job. I
have a training schedulé for Soledad that I could submit to
the Committee.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Would you leave that with us,
please?

MR. MORRIS: Sure. I'd bhe glad to.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: You indicated that as a part of
the communications process you found it helpful to =-- well,

T was going to use the word negotiate. You might not like

that. But at least to sit down with identifiable 1éaders of
i

these various gangs at Soledad at least to work things out

with them, let them know what they can expect 1f they conduct

. .
themselves in such a way and so forth. So in essence you' ve
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officlally recognized the existence of the pangs. Are those
leader so easlily identifiable?

Do they proudly wear the label of captain in the
Mexican Mafia or what have you? How do vou pmo about ldentify-
ing them?

MR. MORRIS: Well, there are no membership lists.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I assumed that.

MR. MORRIS: My experience with the Mexlcan Mafia,
with a couple of exceptions, 1s that seldom does anybody step
forward and acknowledge that he's with the Mexlcan Mafia, and
that's even after the point of a half a dozen inmates telling
you he 1s running the Mexlcan Mafia or he's a power within the
Mexican Mafla.

You call the guy in and talk to him about 1t and
he denies it completely. So at this point, you've got a

‘number of people that feel he 1s, at any rate. This 1is an
interesting thing because it sometimes gets to that point.
It's kind of immaterial what we really think as staff whether
a guy is in a group or not in a group because the inmates
. become so convinced-thgt ne's either lined up wilth them or
against them that he gets stabbed or he's into 1t whether he
wants to be or not.‘

I've seen men stabbed’that I certainly guestion
whether they were ever involved 1n the group excépt that the
opposing faction felt that they were and that's why they got
stabbed. ' ‘

The Famillia in the past has been fairly open about

44

acknowledging their lecadership. At least at our institutlon,
and they would come 1ln and talk. Of course, they identifled
to us the Mafla people. And another thing, we had a Chicano
group operating there at Soledad where there was obviously
members of both pgroups within this Chlcano organization. It
was easy for me to communicate my feelings concerning certain
matters to the group and the message was getting across. You
know, T might not be talking to the leaders of the Mafia at
the institution, but the word would get to them that I was
putting out.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Let's talk about control devices
that one in a management capacity, such as yourself, have
devised and the Department has devised. The Director's
cases and lock down and what have you. How do these function?

MR. MORRIS: Well, taking the Director's cases first,
this cam? about about a year ago now. We had a series of
stabbings and problems throughout the department with these
two_groups. It had been disciussed hefore, you know, how we
might deal with 1t. I believe it was about May of last year
the Director decided to identify the leadership of hoth the
Familia and the Mafia and lock them down and make them
Director's cases.

SENAOR HARMER: What does the term "lock them down"
mean? |

~ MR. MORRIS: That would he to put them in a
segregation unit. I would estimate that the bulk of them were

already in a segregation unit under a 1ocai classification
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plan. Thiﬁ was an action by the Director himself and his
staff ordering the man locked down and the institution starlf
could not release him to a main line without the Director's
permission.

This took place. We had many meetings. Any number
of people were submlitted. I guess probahly four out of five
that were submitted were not accepted by the Director as beilng
a serious enough threat to staff or inmates to be locked down.

It was very selective. They locked down the Mafla
at San Quentin and the major lock down for the Familia was at
Soledad.

I can't speak too authoritatively as to what effect

1t's had on the Mafia except at our institution they obviously

don't want any problems and we haven't had any problems. We're

trying very hard to get along. On the Familia I'm very
familiar with the effect it had. We started with about 30 of
their top leaders locked down. We présently have about 20
hardcore Familia people locked in our segregation unit. Dur-
ing this time 8 people have broken away completely from 1t.
Five or six have gone on protective custody béCause they have
broken awaykso strongly from it and they are feeling the
effects of the Director's lock down.

We took back 15 strong sympathizers and we were able
to put them on the line and in spite of the faet that thesn
hard core cases wanted these people re-released to the line
’to go out and stab and hit somebody out there, as they call

1t, they didn't do i1t because they saw what was happening to
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the others.

I think the recruiting, as far as the Famllla,has
dropped way off hecause they now have a feellng as to what can
happen down the r.ad 1f they get into this organizatlon.

Another interesting thing is that the Familla has ~-~
it's my understanding that hecause the people we put out on the
line has not stabbed anybody, haye not retallated against the
Mafia, now they put contracts on them.

But there aré‘so many on our line now that the
contract 1s kind of meaningless. There are Just too many of
them. As a matter of fact, the group that is sbabilizing on
our line probably outnumhers the hardcore and so we've had
no problem.

I've got a number of them 1n a close supérvision
unit that we're gradually releasing back to the line. As a
matter of fact, I'm meetling with them Friday.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Mr. Chalrman?

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then what you've telling us 1s
that punishment inside the institution 1s effective. Is that
what you're saying? :

MR. MORRIS; The sggrégating of peoplé 1s effectlye,
certainly.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, when you segregate the
hardcore, that's really punishment. You lock them down and
they cannot hurt anybody?

MR, MORRIS: - That's correct.
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SENATOR WEDWORTH: My question then i1s: Why didn't
you do this long before? For instance, say, the first
stabbings. Why did 1t take so many years for somebody, some-
place within the system -~~ and I'm referring now to the
offlcials, the people that run the prisons; that are appointed
to rﬁn théSe institutions -- why did it take you so many years
and so many deaths and so many stabbings to flnally come back
to the reallizatlon that maybe what we've been doing is wrong
and we'd hetter do somethlng else and let's try punishment,
which you eventually did? |

MR. MORRIS: If you'll recall earlier, I sald that
most of the people that were locked down were already locked
up. We locked people up after every stabbing. We had these
people ldentliflied and we had them locked up. The idea of the
Director's saylng, "You cannot be ﬁnlocked unless approval
comes from Sacramento," is what I'm talking about,the Director's
cases.

I would say 99 per cent of the cases that are
Director's cases were locked up when they were submitted to the
Director in the first placé. They were a threat to the line.
They had been involved in stabbings. They had been identified
and segregated. This 1s a 1ong—term lock down. Anybody that
gets 1ocked up appears regularly before a commlttee and each
time he has to get out. Quite naturally, you know, and there's
one hell of a lot more hope involved in the. thing that the
Director has lockéd you down as a definite threat and this 1s

long~term.
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SENATOR WEDWORTH: The Director has locked you down.
Would you identify the Director?

.MRq MORRIS: The Director of Communicatlons.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That's Mr. Procunler?

MR, MORRIS: Yes, sir.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: From his ivory tower with
information he says, "Okay, lock thls one up." Without his
okay, you don't do 1t?%

MR. MORRIS: No. No, we can lock anyhody up we
want to lock up with cause. Anybody that's a threat to the
staff or inmates can be locked up.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, would you say that since
thereﬁs been this change and you have these lock downs and I
know you do, there's beén a tremendous change 1in the operation
of our instltutlions 1n the recent months, right?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: I'm aware of that. Then you say
it is working?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then would you say it 1s hecause
lock down 1s really punishment, isn't 1t?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Would you say that they do recogw
nize punishment?

| MR. MORRIS: Yes.
SENATOR WEDWORTH: Thank you. That's all T wanted.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala?
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SENATOR AYALA: Could you describe for me what you
mean by "lock them up"?

They're already in prison; they're in jall. What
does the additional lock up mean, solltary conflnement? What
are we talkilng about?

MR. MORRIS: We're talking about the segrepation
unit. At our institutlon we have a hundred and forty-four
man segregation unit. In this unit 1t's very tight security.
They're moved in restraint anyplace they go. By that I mean

they're moved 1n handcuffs. They are under close supervision

when they shower, exerclse. They're exercised in small numbers.

Because of the large number of different, you know,
we have people from every affiliation up there and aﬁiot of
animoslity so we have to be careful on when we exercféé them
and how we exerclise them. They spend a great deal of time 1n

thelr cells. There 1s no program for them. You know, they

can't go to school. There's no self-improvement efforts there.

SENATOR AYALA: Is there a guldance center at
CIM?

When they first arrive there, don't they keep them
up iIn a certain area of the prison until they are able to
evaluate where to ship them?

MR. MORRIS: They may. There is really no comparison
between guldance center processing and what I'm talking about.

SENATOR AYALA: My further question 1s, sir, and I
should 5ave asked the Sergeant the same question, too: Are

these also prevalling in our women's prisons,‘these different

~50-

groups, the Mexican Mafia?
MR. MORRIS: T really don't have any knowledge of it.
Itve heard that there is kind of a women's auxiliary, but I
can't speak with authority on that.
SENATOR AYALA: Just one further question: The
Sergeant, 1 guess, indicated the ballpark figure of 700 for
the Mexican Mafia, 500 for the Pamilla, 400 for the Aryan, and
1250 for thé Black Guerilla Family.
You say you can't identify these people. They won't
admit 1t. How are these flgures arrived at?
MR. MORRIS: Well, I'm not sure how the Sergeant
arrived at his figures. How I identify a lot of them -- as I
said, the Famlly will often identify themselves. They are
getting more reluctant, but they have in the past often
identified themselves.
SENATOR AYALA; In your opinion ==
MR. MORRIS: It's inmate information by and large.
As I sald before, it sometimes becomes ilmmaterial what we
think. If the Mafia belleveis a man 1s in the Famlly, and they
feel 1t strongly enough to stab him, you know, 1t's kind of
immaterial whether he's in the Famlly because they have put
him in the Family and they feel he's there.
SENATQR AYALA: Are these filgures fairly accurate
as you're concerned or do you haye any idéa?

MR. MORRIS: Well, T don't know. I don't know

pecause he mentioned the word tsympathizers." When you thiﬁk
of sympathlzers -- from all the information I got with real
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problems, real problems within the institution breaks out,
that 1t is really golng to altgn with the Chlcanos from the
Los Angeles area whlch 1s, you know, a large portion of our
population as opposed to the rural and Northern California.
So when you start talking sympathizers, somebody that didn't
even belong in the organization mlght well he a sympathlzer
and 1t mlght be a north;;outh deal if 1t ever hecame real
heavy.

SENATOR AYALA; This number may be conservatlve
then?

MR. MORRIS: If you're golng to say sympathilzers
and he sald that, yes, it could be, because it's a north~south
type of thing. Rural north as opposed to urban Chicanos out
of Los Angeles,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Morris, I assume you have
the same ohservatlons or problems or however we should describe
them relative to information coming into the prison with
regard to lawyer's vylsitation and what have you. Is the
narcotic traffic in use inside Soledad comparable to that of
other institutions?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Can you add anything to what
Sergeant Hankins said relative to the introduction of narcotics
- into Soledad?

MR. MORRIS: Only that we are presently building

another wyisiting area and in this vislting area we are going to e?®

have the glass and telephones for visiting. As we ldentify
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people who are involyed ih narcotlcs or who we feel are
involved in narcotics, we're golng to require them to visit
in this special area.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: No contact visits?

MR. MORRIS: No contact visilts. |

In other words, a contact visit is golng to be a
privilege that's going to have to he very carefully protected
at our institution. That's what we are moving toward.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Whyshasn't that always been the
case? Has there been judiclal intervention or decislons that
have changed the nature of visitation or the introduction of
material, reading matter in the prison?

MR. MORRIS: Yes, there has been. Not the visiting,
to my knowledge. I can't think of anything off thé top of my
head.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You know of no Judicial declslons
or other legal restrictlons that ilmportune your abillty to
determine the type of vlisitation that's golng to be allowed?

MR. MORRIS: No, not off the top of my head.

Again, and the Sergeant covered 1t, 1t's important to
remember that -~ you know, I can't give any figures either, but
it's still the majority of the men 1n prison who are trylng to
do their time and program and get out and we're dealing with
a minority and 1t's very difficult to oppress a large number
of men hecause of a few.

So the best thing we can try to do is ldentify these

few and set up restrictions for them accordingly. This 1s
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exactly why we have the adjustment centers, the close super-
vision unlts. I do have some concerns about judlcial
intervention.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: TDlease, T would be intcevested.

MR. MORRIS: Well, in terms of ciassification, we
place a man in one of these lock up units through a classifica-
tion process and 1f the courts get involved in our classifica-
tion process or try *t~ determine from afar whether a man 1is a
threat to other inmates or to staff, this can cause one ter-
rible problem.for us that I hope we never have to face. Our
classiflication process may be inexact, but we do the best we

can and We keep tne majority in mind.

The majerity of the men and 1t's Just like a town.

There are some people who don't get along in any society. We've

got a group of people that didn’'t get along in society in the
first place. Now within that society there's some people that
Just don't get along. They prey on others or they're very
dangerous people. And they need to be segregated so that we
can operate as normally as possible with the majority.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Harmer?

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Mr. Chairman? Oh, I'm sorry.

Go ahead.

SENATOR HARMER: Mr. Morris, the genéral tenor of
our hearing has been to determine if within our facilities at
this time there is a‘growing recrultment into these radical
militant groups and if there is any way to 1déntify organized

effort on thé outslde of the institutions to make contact with
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the inmates and to encourage tneir recrultment into these
organizatlons.

Do you see in the oyerall picture at Soledad any
indications that would tell you that these organizations are
érowing in number? That there is increased actlvity to both
recrult and mobllize inmates into these organizations?

MR. MORRIS: Well, T would only say vyes to one part.
I think that the thing is growing, 18 moving on the streets.
At least, the information we have 18 that 1it's moving on the
streets. 1 don't see any plg, major change in the institution
other than the fact that the thipg is obviously carrylng over
to the streets. |

SENATOR HARMER: You say the thing is carrying oVe?
to ﬁhe street. You mean the recrultment to these organizatlons

) he
appears to be active on the outside at the.institution to t©

best of your knowledge?
MR. MORRIS: Well, recrultments -~ not necessarily

what I think -- 18 that people who are in these organizatlons,

¥ e
some of them tend to gO out and continue working with another

group of people who are in the organization on the outside.
T think that's what we're finding oubt.
| SENATOR HARMER: Do you know what the general
()
purpose of these people is in thelr activity on the outside?
What 1s it they want to do?
AMR MORRIS: Well, continue to fight each other

first The Pfirst 1is probably to continue criminal activity.

Second is to fight each otheri
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SENATOR HABMER: 1s there any purpose in this, any
srpress purpose on thelr part, any identifylng theme that
unites them that you know of?

Do they have a discernible goal that they want to
nehieyve or are they just people whose whole mentallity 1s
committed to violence?

MK. MORRIS: That's falr. There are a large number
of them -- now, not everybody in the group is committed to
viclence. Not everybody has even committed violence. And an
appreciable number in the Familla pulled out Just as a result
of being told, "You have to stab somebody." They come into
the institution. They were from, maybe, San Jose, which is
a proper place to be from, and they join tke Familia. And it
was all fun and games and all of a sudden somebody tells them,
"You have to stab samebody.“ fhat's when they started having

thoughts about belonging to this organization.

But some of them are very much committed to violence.

Seme of them are very danpgerous people. It's safe to say that
most of these people aren't going to be on the streets for a
long, long time. |

SENATOR HARMER: As opposed to your inmate popula-
tivn that is on the line and in the adjustment center or
joeked up, what percentape in ratio could you identify for us
of membership in the radical militant groups?

wounld 1t be bhat more of the radical militant group
prmbers tend to be In ﬁhé laék up or on the line or can you

fdentily such percentages?

o .
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MR. MORRIS: VWell, the dangerous, radlcal, mlilitant,
or underground inmate groups are locked up. I hope I'm
speaking authoritatively on that.

SENATOR HARMER: Have you seen over the perlod of
your experience 1n the system generally, irrespective of how
long you've been at Soledad, any change in the Familia or the
prison population over the last decade?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR HARMER: What has been that change?

MR. MORRIS: Well, the change 1s that -~ 1t's very
similar to the change that is happening on the streets. I
spent many years in the Department of Ccrrections. I was at
San Quentin when two officers were murdered and I think at that
time,if memory serves me ripht, it was the first two officers
killed in the Department of Corrections in 25 years. Then we
went for many years wlthout anybody being kilied. Then, all
of a sudden, we had a rash of staff belne killed.

The Blacks became more militant Just like they were
becoming on ﬁhe cstreets. They wanted recognition and we weren't
dealing with the moststable Black element. We were dealing
with the most dangerous Black element in the institution.

The Chicano movement started or the streets and the
Chlcano movement started in the institution. 1In between times
we always had our Nazi type and what with one thing and
another, they were more than willing to get off into their
ching, the white supremacy thing. You have the same thing on

the street over the last few years, and as far as I'm concerned,
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it kind of refleets what's bappening in soclety. It wenbt on

in the institution in a more dangerous vein, ' o ®
SENATOR HARMER: Would 1t be a falr summary of your

gtatement to say that in your opinion over the last decace

the nature of our prison population has become a more danger- o ®

ous type person and a more violent type person to deal with

in the institution?
MR. MORRI&: Yes, I'd agree with that statement. P
SENATOR HARMER: Then to continue on from that point:

Do you see any relationship between the emergence of that

phenromena and some causatlive element? You tell me it's the ® ®

same thing that's been happening on the outside. Why 1s it

happening at least to our prison population? Why over the

past decade is our prison population becomlng more violent and ® ®

more militant and a more dangerous type individual?

What has happenéd in our society to bring this about

or In our penal system to bring it about? P o

MR. MOHRI&: Well, that's a tough one. I'm not sure.
I'm really not sure. I do know that we have -~ for instance,
one example 1s the forger doesn't come to an institution as o ®
regularly as he did in the past unless it's a large-scale forgery
operation. He's more apt to get probation or something of that
nature.  This has tended to drive iup the violence. I don't P
w1oW why violenee has dnereased on the ontside. I really |
dunt't, L don't know why violence has increased against police ;
officers, and 1t has. I'm not sure anybody has the answer o ®

Lo lt. It's kind of an anti-establishment thing going on that
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is hard for somehody that's heen part of the establishment for
so long to understand.

SENATOR HARMER: Well, 1f we can then get back to
perhaps something more speclfic and less theoretlcal. Within
Soledad itself can you ldentlfy any additlonal groups other
than the ones that Sgt. Hankins referred to as belng in
existence? You stated you had the new Familia, the Mexican
Maflia, the Aryan Brotherhood. Do you have members of the
Symbionese Liberation Army at Soledad to the best of your
knowledge?

MR. MORRIS: No.

SENATOR HARMER: You are saying you don't know or
you don't have?

MR, MORRIS: ©Not to my knowledge.

SENATOR HARMER: You have no knowledge of having
any there?

MR. MORRIS: No.

SENATQR HARMER: How about Venceremos?

MR. MORRIS: Well, we have had people, disruptlve
people within our institublon. Some of them that we have had
to segregate and one thing and another who corresponded wlth
Venceremos~type people. But as far as anyﬁody acknowledging
themselves or eveﬁ informants saying this person was a member
of Venceremos, we have had very little of that within the
institution,

SENATOR HARMER: How about the real Mafia, the

Costa Nostra Mafia?



MR, MORRIS: We have a couple of those guys.
SENATOR HARMER: Do they funiction in any differen

way?
MK, MORRIS: No, they don'i cause us any problews

at all.

SENATOR HARMER: Just one last question then, Mr.
Morris, Is there any 1ndication that the emergence of these
groups 1o {dentified with Communist activity, with Marxisﬁ,
Leninist propoganda?

MR. MORRIS: Yes, thils Third World Movement is almost
in a part. We have people in all groups that get off 1into
that. We'ye never had, you Kriow, A group jump up and say,
et pe the Third World Movement," but there are people that
by the literature they receilve and the correspondence they
gend out, wWe know they were quite obviocusly w.y off into the )
Phipd World and most of that 15 Communist-type literature.

T say Communist, and most of it leans more towards
the China bhrand.

SENATOR HARMER: Maoist-type, you mean?

MR. MORRIS: Maoist-type, ves.

SENATOR HARMER: Is the 1iterature that Sgt. Hankins
showed us typical of the type of 1literature that shows up

among the prisoners at Soledad?

MR, NMOHRRIB: Yes.

SENATOR HARMER: Its theme isgenerally th¢ same theme?

MR, MORRIS: Yes.
SENATOR HARMER: Thank you, Mr, Chairman.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Mr. Morris, we're golng to take

approximately a ten-minute recess. We Senators have to go to
the floor for a few moments to start the session.

After ten minutes, we will return and commence. If
you can Just walt, we'll go right on from there.

There will he a ten-minute recess.

(Whereupon a brief recess was
taken, after which the follow-
lng proceedings were had.)

MR. MORRIS: RQenator, could I make a few comments on
things that I've had time to reflect on in this hreak?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We'll go back on the record.
You can proceed, Mr. Morpris. |

MR. MORRIS: First, in terms of the punishment
aspect of belng locked up. I'm sure the inmates view 1t as
punishment. That's not our intent. Our intent is to make the
institution safe and sepregate these people. That's our
Intent.

The other thing Senator lHarmer was asking about is
that the whole thrust of the State has been to keep lightwelght
of fenders out of prison, which has had probably the most
pronounced influence on the type of people we.receive today.

The last thing I'd like to comment on 1s the refer-
ence the Senator made to Director Procunier in his 1vory towep.
We have nobody in Sacramento involved in the directkoperations
who hasn't had longtérm institutional expefiénce similar.to my

own. So they know what's going on.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. Let me proceed
where 1 was when we broke and then I think Senator Ayala had
tome guestions,

With regard to the handling of lawyers and their
euntact with inmates in the Soledad 3ystém, I'd like your
analysip of that problem. Did you hear Sgt. Hankins' comments
in that regard?

MR. MORRIS: Yes, I did.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Do you have the same problem at
Goledad? Do you handle it exactly the same?

MR. MORRIS: No, we haven't had the problems that
wan Quentin has experienced, I deal personally with all
attorneys for central facllity, and in all honesty, the so=~
called radical element in my personal dealings with them have
by and large been the same as with any other attorney. They've
been very reasonable with very few exceptions, and the excep-
tions I always call to their attention not only on the spot
hut I've put 1t in wrlting to them that this type of conduct
won't be permitted and we've had mall comé in that was maga-
“ines marked "legal mail," but they weren't radical magazines.

We haven't had any real serious violations of the
matl at our institution that I know of.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What's different about Soledad
and. Ban Quentin in this respect? Is the type of inmate
- difrervent? “

MR. MORRIS: Yes, and who you happen to have at your
institutlon. At one time we had inmates there who attracted

e I

thils type of element and we had much more contact with them
at that time. Many of thesc people were transferred to San
Quentin and, of course, the attorney interest then centered
on them. We are also a little tit further away from the Bay
Area where these people headquarter than San Quentin.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala?

SENATOR AYALA: Yes, Mr. Chalrman. I want to pursue
one of the questions by Senator Harmer. In reference to the
increase of more vlolent-type of individuals in our jails today
and the question was: In your oplnlon, what has triggered this
type of a hardcore-type of person into our institutions? I
Just wonder 1f something that we're doing wilthin the
institution has triggered 1t, our attitudes or lack of or
perhaps more discipline. What is 1t? Is 1t anything that
we 're doing within the prison that will trigger this type of
violent attitude on the part of individuals or is 1t something
they already had when they came to the institution?

MR. MORRIS: Well, I sure hope not, Senator. You
know, we're sometimes accused of running a crime school.
Obviously, we don't run a crime school, but we can't stop
anybody who comes to an institution intent on becoming more
professional by talking to more professional people and he
fofgets that they are also failures at whatever criminal
profession they were 1in because they are 1n prison, too.

We can't stop a man who wants to become a hetter
burglar from taiking to other burglars andyabquiring new

techniques. To that extent, he can further his education in
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erime L that's whal he comes there and seeks. We certainly
don't encourape 1t.

SENATOR AYALA: T recognlze ihat the correctional
officers are screened intensively before they're given the
position., My limited experlence as a guard, a Marine guard
at a Naval prison, I noted some of the indivyiduals, my fellow
guards, they enjoyed the idea of triggering and making it
rough for the inmates, their own fellow Navymén or Marines
or whatever.

I Just wonder if in spilte of the fact that we do
screen the correctional offilcers very carefully to a great

degree, that maybe one or two slip in that has that type of

personallty who would like to anger these people and trigger 1t.

1 ; .
I'm not suggesting thls happens, but I know this has happened

as Marine guard in a prison.

My other gquestion is that you mention that you refer
to a Yenceremos-type of perSon.

MR. MORRIS: I sald that?

SENATOR AYALA: You said that earlier, yes. I wrote
it down as you sald it.

MR. MORRI&: I'll do my best Lo explain what T
thought I was saying at the time. I equate it with this
Third World Armed Revolutionary, armed overthrow of the govern-
ment. That's what I equate 1t with. A violent overthrow, not
through gocial change or political chapge,.b&t Just armed

violenge.

SENATOR AYALA: You mean involved in the forceful

Gl

overthrow of the government, this is the type of people that
are attracted Lo the Venceremos?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR AYALA: My thirad question; Would you support
legislation that would limit the maill privilege to only the
attorney-client type‘of a situatlon and every other mail
received by the inmate be opéned by the authoritles regardless
of whether it's from attorneys or not?

‘MR. MORRIS: I support any leglslation that is
submitted by the Director of Corrections and through the
proper channels and passed.

SENATOR AYALA: Well, I mean, you have to support
1t because he's your boss. Would you initlate 1t?

Would you promote 1t% Do you think this 1s needed
today? Let me put 1t another way. Do you think we need
legislation that would allow the authorities to open all mall
recelved by inmates except that mall which 1s the attorney-
client type of a letter?

MR. MORRI3: We already have that privilege.

SENATOR AYALA: But I understand that if 1t's
written on the front that it's from an attorney, you can't

open it unless you'!re suspiclous of some illegal getivity being

involved.
ME. MORRI3: We can open 1t in front of the man.

I we have any question at all, we can open it in front of the
man. We don't read 1t, but we open 1t in front of the man.

SENATOR AYALA: Okay.

65~



CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth?

SENATOR WEDWORTI: Mr. Morris, I want you Lo under-
stand that I'm not angry with you or anyone in the
institutions.

MR. MORRIS: Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And I'll use what some of the
press use on some of thelr panels. What I say or the questlons
I ask are not necessarily my own philosophy. Tt's just a way
in this case of not getting a story but getting facts. That's
all I'm interested in.

MR. MORRIS: 1I'll try to help you, sir.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And I would like to ask you this
questlion: You had a dramatic change to the good for the
safety of both inmates and staff at your institution, you tell
us?

MR. MORRIS: A dramatic --

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You had a dramatic change at your
institution, Soledad. You don't have so maﬁy any more, do you?

MR. MORRIS: No.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And I think that's very good.

Now the question is this. Did that change come about by law
or did it come about by regulations under existing law?

MR. MORRIS: It came about because of the existing
regulations.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then this good change for the
safety of everyone at the 1nstitution.cameraboﬁt by a change

of the regulations?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH; . Thank you very much,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Mr. Morris, wlth reference to
the National Lawyer's Guild, you have contact at Soledad with
memhers of thils organization?

MR. MORRIS: YVery, very 1little. I was thinking
about 1t earlier and the only personal contact I'we had was
a telephone call where a Los Angel¢5nbased attorney identifled
himself and his organization and asked me to permlt a law
assistant to go in who had no legal standing and interview
inmates, plural. Under our regulations a man can visit a
person, but anyattorney can visit a numher of people. An
individual can only visit one man and that's what I limlted
him to. And to the best of my knowledge, this intern did not
meet our law student intern type of quallflcations and he
never appeared at the institution.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: I see. Do you find beilng

introduced to your inmate population publicatlons by the

National Lawyer's Guild or other groups of the type 3Jgt.

Hankins was showing us?

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And do you permit that materlal
to be passed into the dinstitutlion?

MR. MORRIS: Only if 1t meets -- they're screened
individually and if they meet the requirements of Penal Code
Section 2600, they're permitted in the institution. If they
don't, we notify the man that the thing 1s not belng permitted
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S lnowpltiog oned Wby,
CHALIMAR CARPEITER:  What are the standards Lhat
Antermine whether or not you permit 1t in?

MR, MORRIL: Well, in pgneral --

CHATRAN CARPENTLR:  Excuse me. Let me give you a
(1t ie L84 meve of what I'm thinking »f. Maybe you can be
eope papponsiye o it.  TPaking, for example, the National
tawyer's Guild pubilication that Spt. Hankins read from inciting
L puppesting kidnaps,killing, or other activities, killing
goltermeon and oo forth,  Let's apply 1t to that situation.
what do you do when you pecelve literature like that?

Mi, NMOHKIS: That wouldn't go into the institution
arst Penal Code 20060 elearly supports our not letting it into
tree inntitution, This section covers that a prisoner can
reerdive anylhing that goes through the U. 8. Mall except that
e wnpden way exelude &hseeng mall, pambling, lottery-type of
tndngn, anyihing thut would pose a threat or violerore within
the inatitution, So 1t's our interpretation of it but it's
Sulrily apeelfia,

| CHATHMAN CARPENTER: Do you have a high volume of
;t&wr&guﬁé in thls veln that 1s presented to you?

ME, MORNIS: No, What's a high volume? We have a
syt e dume of ﬁaii and Qaﬁﬁra coming in and the vast majority
S Then g @pproved in,

The volute of faﬁiaaiklit&ra&&?e has fallen off,
a8 FoP an I'm comerpned, 3t's fallen off in the last couple of

gRars . Thewe isn't a greeat deal of stuff turned away, no.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have specifilce staff
personnel who are assigned the responsibility to make this
determination?

MR. MORRIS: Yes,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: So they have some accumulated
background hy which to judpe this according to the standards
of Penal Code Section 26007

MR. MORRIS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Very good.

SENATOR AYALA: T Jjust have one more questlon.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Go ahead.

SENATOR AYALA: VWhen I was asking about the mall

sltuation, Mr. Morris, you indicated you opened the letters:

but you don't read them. Now you say if the content of the
mall is not proper, you don't give 1t to the inmate. How do
you determine if 1t 1s proper 1f you don't read 1t?

MR. MORRIS: Okay. We're talklng about two different
things. We do not read all mail. We do not read privileged
mall. And privileged mail 1s -- you gentlemen are entltled to
privileged mall. An inmate may write to you and we don't read
it, but we read usual, ordinary correspondence. In other
words, I can open up an attorney's letter 1f I am suspiclous
or a package, and plck the stuff up like thils, ohvliously not
reading 1t, and ¢xamine 1t 1in front of the inmate. The inmate
caﬁ stand there and see I'm not reading it. Bﬁt I make sure w-
you know, as long as 1t's a piece of paper I don't know what's

written on it, As long as it'c a plece of paper, and it's not
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a hacksaw blade or a bunch of magazines, I would give it to
him. But that's attorney maill. That's attorney mail.

SENATOR AYALA: That's what I had reference to
earlier that all mall received by an inmate obviously from an
attorney you don't read?

MR, MORRI3: No.

SENATOR AYALA: And the one that 1s of the attorney-
client nature, you don't read at all or eyen open that?

MR. MORRIS: That's true.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: If there are no further ques-
tions, I'd like to thank you, Mr. Morris, for coming here today
and sharing some information with. us.

MR. MORRIS: Thank you, gentlemen.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: At this time we're_going to
recess until 1:00 p.m., at which time we'll reconvene.

Thank you.

(Whereupon the noon recess was
taken.)
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; We can go on the record. At
this time I'd 1like to call Mr. Arthur Diaz. What 1s your
position in the Department of Corrections?
MR. DIAZ: Speclal Agent, Senatcr; Liaison Enforce-
ment, Liaisonvduties.
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Between the Department and other
law enforcement agencles?
MR. DIAZ: Correct.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; What are your responsilbllities

vin that capacity?

MR. DIAZ: Gathering informatlon from the diffepent
institutions and assimilating the same to other institutions,
law enforcement agencles, and in general keepling apprised of
the amount of actlivity, violent incidents that are of mutual
interest within the system and also on the street as 1t pep~
tains to parolees that are involved in our operation.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have responslbilty

relative to the New Family, Nuestra Famllia?

MR. DIAZ: That's correct.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And the Black Guerilla Family,
is that correct? o

MR. DIAZ: Up to a point, I do, yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; ~ Can you glve us some hackground

‘relative to the activities of Nuestra Familia as you see them
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from your polnt of yiew?

MR. DIAZ; T think you have a copy. I want to point
out, 1t!'s the Constitution of the Nuestra Familia. It's that
81x or seven pages and onme of the ways that I can explain some-
thing ahout the Nuestra Famllla that people who have been
working in the NF, as it 1s also referred to, would agree with
us, by golng over parts of the Constitution and explaining how
we see this as affecting the Department.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: How in practice the content of
the Constitution 1s carried out by the organization?

MR. DIAZ: Correct, In this light.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Would you speak as close to the
microphone as you can, please. Proceed to select what portions
you wlsh to discuss.

, MR. DTAZ: TFine. I think the best part to proceed
with 1s thelr Article IV, which has at the top of the page,

"Lieutenants."

The reason I want to start there -- excuse me, let me

back up.
SENATOR CARPENTER: Ahout page 5 or 6 of the
document? |

MR. DIAZ; Article II, starting with Section I

indicates the primary purpose an

D
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Article II subsection I: "The primary purpose or
rpoal of this organization. . ." meaning the NF, ". . .will
be for the betterment of its members and the building up of

the organization on the outside into a strong and self-
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supporting Familia.

Now, this Constitution was plcked up hy\sécurity
bfficers in Soledad the first part of January and we had 1t
typed up verbatim including the spelling errors that are in
there to reflect to some degree the éducational leyel perhaps
of the individual who wrote it and his expertise in making a
document lilke this.

Section III is interesting. "“A Famlliano will not
he released from his obligations toward thé organization
because he is released from prison, but will be expected to
work twice as hard to.see that a Famllia 1s establlshed and
works in hand with the organization already establlshed behlnd
the walls (Pinta)."

Pinta, P-i-n-t-a, which is the Mexlcan word for °
institution.

Now, Section IV. "A Famliliano will remaln a family
member until death or otherwise dlscharged from the organiza-
tion. He will always be subject to put the lnterest of the
organization first and always above everythlng else in prison
or out." )

There was earller testimony about the carry-through-
of the NF and other organizations from the‘insidé to the

outside.

Section ¥ deals with an area that affects violence
within the institution because 1t 1s talking ahout'discipline.
"An automatlc death sentence will hé put on a

Famlliano that turns traltor, coward, or deserter. Under no
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cirecumstances will a brother Famlliano be responslblie for
8pllling the hlood of a fellow brother Familiano. To do so
will be considered an act of treason.,"

Within the Constiltution there are further provisions
of a member's hlood because in achleving discipline within the
ranks they have made provisions that 1f an inmate does not
follow through with his orders, then he will be disposed of
at the discretion of his immedlate leader.

SENATOR HARMER: Can I iInterrupt, Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes.

SENATOR HARMER: Are you familiar with any instances
of this happening where in fact a member of the NF tried to
leave the organlzation and was pursued and killed because of
167

' MR. DIAZ: There are instances that are documented
in the Department.

SENATOR HARMER: Of that happening?

MR. DIAZ: Of that happening, correct.

And also there are instances of people that were high
@p in the leadership that in their own words saw the madness
of 1t all since they were at the top of the echelon and wanted
out and have clarlified these areas for us in terms of how the
structure was working, admitting thelr involvement in the
organlzation and are now, of course, in a protéctive custody
setting.

GENATOR HARMER: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr, Diaz;‘on that point«and not

~7h-

with the intention of being grammatical, in Section V whére

it says, "An automatic death sentence will be put on a Familiano
that turns traitor, coward or deserter." Then 1t goes on to
say, "Under no circumstances will a brother Familiano be
résponsible for spilling the blood of a brother." Now, that's
inconslstent. Who carries out an execution order if they can't

5

kill their own members of the family or does that mean --

MR. DIAZ: Okay. That 1s, as I sald, as it was picked
up as written. Now, they make further provisions for spllling
the blood of another member that comes under the discipline
aspect. They go in degrees and one of the things on earlier
constitutions that came about and the methods of dealing with
disciplinary measures would seem to be so harsh that they
were driving their own members out,

So in Article VI, they take 1t in degrees. The
regimental captain -- they have people in the structure at
different institutions. 'The original captain shall pass
sentence for all minor infractions of conduct. Tn wartime
there will be no appeal to the national general, " which means
that 1f a particular captain or paréicular Institution feels
that this one should be handed out, at that point ir they're
engaged in violent activites wlth, say, the Mafia or the
Aryan Brotherhood, which they are opposed to, then he will
carry out the discipline. He will not be faulted for having

executed that fhingm

However, in what they call a peacetime situation,

they have to. refer it right back up the liné‘
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And you feel that they falrly
closely adhere to the dictates of thelr Constitution?

MR. DIAZ: Correct.

CHATIRMAN CARPEN'TIR: What would tLhe sentonce be
for a minor Infraction? Can you glve us some example of what
kind of discilpline would he meted out in those cases?

I assume 1t's somethlng short of death. What can
they do or what has heen done inside the prison for a minor

infraction?

MR. DIAZ: Well, you've got expulsion. They cut them
off from the organization and then they become prey for the
other organizations. The minute you join the Nuestra Familia
as 1t stands now, you're going to be a target for the Aryan
Brotherhood and the Mexlcan Mafia who have a coalition.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; All right. 3o you lose your
protection.

| MR. DIAZ: You lose your protection in terms of maybe
your personal belongings, your manhood. One issue 1s the
homosexuality bit where somebody picks on a weaker inmate.
Those sorts of things would occur.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: = All right. Go ahead.

MR. DIAZ: The more severe disciplinary measures,
of course, are what we're running across in coded messages
and intercepted communications that are double talk on con=
Ltracts on members elther inside the institﬁtion or outside.
There are prepared lists of people who are out of the

organlization, out of grace, and actual contracts have been
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wlll be reserves according to their rank."

Now, Section IV "B"., '"Whenever Nuestra General
becomes incommunicado and can't supervise hls captalns, the
first captain or commander of La Nuestra Famiiia will have the
responsibllity to see that each captain of the sald organiza-
tion inveckes and governs within thils constitution."

As to actual meéhanics, they have inmates coming in
to different institutions on regular transfer who bring
messages from different institutlions wverbally or if it's
doubted that it came from, say, the leadershlp, then it would
be in written or coded form. |

Sometimes, like Mr. Hankins mentioned earlier,
in letters that mlght be labeled, "Legal.' |

To be exact, thls partlicular document was in an
envelope and all it had was "Legal Mall." It was opened and
out fell the Nuestra Famllia Constltution that waé being
brought in after belng drafted with all this rough.for% into
Soledad. '

Now, as far as outside communlcations, they have as
we mentlioned earller, outside people, girlfriends, membérs who
have already gone to the streets and messages aré passed back
and forth, If you're out in a camp situation, of course, you've
got phone calls that can be madé'and that's oné method'als;. |

But, in the area of commﬁnications, when staff
flrst startgd working this thipg; your lettérs; your formai
~communication was fairly open. A lot of the communications,

say, were written in Spanish slang terms that are not easlly
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plcked up by staff who don't know Spanish or don't understand
the street jargon evyen 1f you d1d know Spanish or the Spanish
slang and jargon mixed in with the institutional terms that
pop up.

T helleve you were glven some examples here earller
'of'some of the words. They also supstitute one word for
another in code form. Especlally with the Blacks now with the
BGF, there are a 1ot of words that are being used from Swahill
dictionaries that are completely unknown to anyone unless you
know how to read Swahili dictionaries. This you plck up as
you're golng along and trying to decipher what they're trying
to say.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: What can you tell us about
the street activities of the Nuestra Familia®

MR. DIAZ: From what we have gathered from people
who have gotten out of the system high up in the structure,
there is a definite structure of sorts, unsophisticated right
now. The mainstay of the outside activity right now, the
power hase 18 in the Santa Barbara-Qxnard area.

CHALRMAN CARPENTER; Excuse me. Why there?

MR. DIAZ: The reason 1is because of the chain of
command. They do have a recognized individual out on the
streets who, from the information that we haye -- when a
person 1s released; as mentioned earlier; he's not relieved of
responsibility from the NF. He is supposéd to report to an
individual on the outside for assignmentkwhethér it be a

contract hit involving criminal activity or on the streets or
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polng, back Into the dnstitution. If 1t was a narvcoticen sceene.,
In the Oxnard area yhere's an individual who before getting
out yolunteered for the dubious pleasure of being the execu-
tioner for the Nuestra Familla. From the information we have,
contracts that are supposed to be carried out are directed to
him by the individual who has the authority above him to be
farmed out from fthere.

This 1s why I mentioned those areas specifically in
this particular organization. The NF out of all the
organlzations seems to document most of what it does and is
really the most talked about clandestine group that we have.
It's not as hard to follow up as the rest of them. But that's
getting increasingly harder because they know that we're
into this and their methods of communication are becoming more
velled and it's harder to pick up on it.

They're going person to person rather than written
communications and that ties it up unless you turn to the
Individual who Is receiving and he's willing to share them with
you.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We have some estimates of the
number of people who might be involved in the NF. Dc you
concur with those numhers? .

MR. DIAZ: I don't disagree. I would say that in
all of these groups there are a hardcore number who are really

at least talking themselves into really being dedicated to the

thing. They're the hanger-ons and there are the people who are .

walting to be recruited, so to speak.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I suppose that's true in
the Ladles Ald Socilety, too,'all organizations.

MR. DIAZ: Correct.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What 1s the relationship
between Nuestra Famllia and the Mexlcan Mafla?

MR. DIAZ: Okay. There isn't any relatlon to speak
of. What 1s occurring as §gt. Hankins voiced earlier, there
1s what 1is declared here as a war right now hetween the
Mexlcan Mafia and the Nuestra Familia. The Nuestra Familia
keeps very concise lists of all its enémies -~ and by enemles,
I mean the Mexican Mafia -~ by name, By number, if they can |
get it, by town, by local barrio; chlcas, which is a slang
term for the Oxnard area.

At any rate, right now in the institution, the
Department has taken some stéps to separate these people,
identify them, and not so much in a disciplinary sense, bﬁt
if you have leadership -- if a completely unknowledgeahle
berson put the Nuestra Familia leadership in the same housing
sectlon with a Mexican Mafia leadership under the feeling
that, well, the racial balance should be 35n many Mexlcans,
on that sort of a pure level; you'd have thé place falling
apart because they'd he at each other's :hroats.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What 1s the hasis for their
dispute?

MR. DIAZ: Okay.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You réferred to 1t as a war.

MR. DIAZ: Well, Sgt. Hankins mentioied earlier w~-
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Mie, o fAZ: Gunat Lo fowrt o0 Tt Hee, foc Fevdean
Mot wan Lo MUt cre o rne tiee Meglean peeption of the copula-
Lion whe Lepan o oaepievs some strueture.,  When they found
trat whey mad ome power, they tepan to explolt other lnmates.
Ciar Memfenn eiepsent thal they were pepinning to explolt was the
sy Lhat W@ﬁﬂ‘g“uu suphistinated from the rural farm areas.
fro o matter of fuet, the Mexican Mafla called the NF farmers,
Leresteaders and nesters.  When this oceurred, then, the NF
Lepan to fopmo s oo ratunl ool protection soclety. Wnen they
aenteved a o tevel of cophistication, they then began to take
Crao Mextenn Mafio te task as far as making assaults on them,
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potny it pres;upe-type activities on other inmates who
sttt Anvoived in oane way or the other.

CHATHMAN CAKPENTEHR: Yes. All right. It seems to
s that 4 you hiave in oa pricon population members of both
creeaps with Lhin mutul hatred or ahtitude'in exlstence, you
sooye sempwhat ot an tmpasee.  Mayhe 19 @1 eould use the expres-
sion, "the Meaiean otandoft." This is oveduse they're mutually
pectpetive of thels menters,.  They ﬁay'be competitive, but
et ot would Le petalisted by anether. Does that have .a
tendeney o oauprress vialent astivity on the inside?
RE, DiA.0r You rean sisivg up these individuals,

. \ P L Y T R Al Akl
pieet of stantinge o'y

pe hard for otaff te luentify the vielenee potential of each

individual and whethep op not he's polng to carry it out. See,

—
ST

SR

in the institution 1t isn't enough that you have four Mexicansg
here and another four here and they all have a piecé. To get
back to the old saying, "Do they have enough moxie to use ie,"
and thelr general reputation. You can have three Mexlcan
Mafia Individuals probably make a group of ten or fifteen
others shy away simply because they know that there will be
retaliation in the future.

See, 1t's not that black and white. You get 14
here and 14 there and give them all the same.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, as one who sees these
furictions and, of course, your expertise 1s primarily with the
Nuestra Famllia, can you discuss a little bit the impact on ‘
the prison attltude of the population at large by this group
and the others in competlition wlth the stabbings and killings
that have occurred? Well, let me tell you what I'm trying to
get in my mind.

' The prison system in 1ts best days of operation has
not turned out to be a rehabllitative success. It strikes me
that this type of activity further depresses the pctentlal of
rehabhllitation on all the prilsons.

‘MR, DIAZ: Correct.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And can you describe in your.
own words as one involved far more closely than I what impact
this terrorism has on not just rehabilitation but on 1life insilde
the institution? o |

MR. DIAZ: It 1is very disruptive. If we send an
individual in to do hils time and he fully intends to do that
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in g@ﬁ@ faltk, wub in omier to genleyve the yery Las!e human
needs of & opale, his manhosd sr whatever, and these
individuale are dpiving on him to uecome involved in hemo-
sezual asts or beeome invoived in cther unlawful acts, which
e may Le prosecuted for while he's there, bringing in say
narcotiecy op whatever you have, Ve're not really putting him
inoa netting whners ne ean fulfiil what we put him there to do,
4o nln time, pet gur under the guidelines that we have.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTEK: But you do feel they are having
A hiegative dmpact?

MR, DIAZ: To a degree. I don't want to be an
Minpmint, Welre gware that this thing iz existing. You try
Leotdentdfy peopie teoi depree that you can make -- well, the

cdanaiflention committees ean mauke the right recommendations

Yoo tnntdtat fonal seeurity and what have you. You go from there.

PEATHNAN CARPENTER: One witness in the prior hearing
fan toddoup that wolle the lock down device is an effective
Sevive Popodeailng with sertadn members, but he says you can't
Lok everybody down Perever,

ME. LTAZY  No.

CHATHSAN CARPENTER: IT you lock too many people
dowi for sl s wr four menths, you'd better keep them there
PR Uhe reat of toely llves tecause they'll never be able to
we with anybogy apaln. Woat I probably shculdvhave asked
Mro Morrio eariier was the uﬁuﬁl t@?m or the gverare term for
& doek down when it eemes aheut involving some of these
poople,
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MR. DIAZ: I don't bhave any personal knowleodpe In
that area, Scnabor. Thouo deolslons ave made by Ghe
Institution stnl'f who deal wilth the classifylng of inmates
and theilr behavior and time.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala?

SENATOR AYALA; Yes, I wasn't here at the beginning,
Mr. Chairman, and I'd like to ask Mr. Diaz: What is your
capaclty with the California Department?

MR. DIAZ: Special Agent, Senator, Law Enforcement
Liaison is thé function that we perform.

SENATOR AYALA: You work out of the Sacramento
office or are statloned at one of the institutions?

Where is your primary area of operatlion?

MR. DIAZ: Well, keep it hroad. Southern California.
But we go all over the State.

SENATOR AYALA: What is your experience in this
field?

MR. DIAZ: I've been with the State sewven years, in
Corrections for ten. I've worked juvenile for three years in
a supervisory capacity in PFresno County, to be exact.

I have worked institutions. I haye worked parole
and I'm on assignment now.

SENATOR AYALA: The by-~laws that we received here,
I'm too clear. I wasn't here when you started your explana-
tion. How did you come about these hy-laws, not only the by~
laws, but the revised by-laws? How do you keep up with the

revisions on them?

<r-85"



MR, LipZ: Weii, a6 owe ean pet themw.,  Ac Lhe
srganization gets a tittle more eclundestine, we probably
wontt gee them., Mest of 1t will be in thelr heads. The way
we got theoe, Senator, i1s they came in from one institution to
another in a plain envelope marked "Lepal Mall.' Of course,
the inmate came in and the staff looked through it, because it
wasn't a letter that fit into that catepory and we cobtained
thepe,  These sare fyped verbatlm with all of thelr errors as
wos in the leang-hand copy to make 1t easlier to read.

SERATOR AYALA:  The next question would be: Is the
Huestra Pamilin a functional organization inside and outside

the penal inotitutions or primary for those who are incarcer-

rx & wn A FS
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MR. DIAZ: To a depgree I'd have to say yes from the
information we have., Yes.

- BENATOR AYALA: Yes?

MR, DIAZ: VYes. It is functional inside and outside.
SENATOR AYALA: Does this involve both men and women?
MR, DIAZ: Men for the most part. The women seem to

ve plaving the role of runners in, say, narcotics and providing

JURROYL .,

GENATOR AYALA:  In Article I "E' under Section IX.
seetion I actually says that the Nuestra general may be
impeaeched,  Now, heow does that take place?

FBRe DIAZ: I'11 tell you my views on that matter.

This was a revised copy., Prior to this coming out one of the

whyn of deleting your unpopular leadership was to execute chem
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and get them out.

SENATOR AYALA: That's how you impeach them?

MR. DIAZ: So when this was revised, 1t apparently
left a little hope for the people down at the bottom. 8o if
they wanted them out, they wouldn't have to take the extreme
measure of having them executed.

SENATOR AYALA: When you mentioned declaring war,
this 1s war on other organizations?

MR. DIAZ: Correct. I'm paraphrasing what I have
picked up in their correspondence and in the Constitution.
That's the word they use.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworuh?

SENATOR HARMER: Mr. Diaz, is it your opinion that
there 1s a conscilousness in the Mexican-American community
outside of the prison of the exlstence of thils organization?

MR. DIAZ: It depends. I'll glve you an example,
Here in Sacramento a whille back there were articles in Del
Paso Helghts and at that time I was attendlng a claSs and,
of course, people asked, "Did you hear about thé Del Paso
Heights thing." = All that was said was, "Where is Del Paso

Helghts?" So in terms of thls organization, these people

_generally operate in areas where there's a crimlnal element in

the copmunity. Yes, those people who llve around these areas
would have a consclousness of something helng cohesive there
or they might have knowledge of the NF. OQOther areas would

not.

'
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SENATOR HARMER: You've testified that it's an
established organization; that its structure 15 now sophisti-
eated enough that 41t can probably he gelf~perpetuating.

Do you perceive 1t as a passing phenomena op some-
thing likely to e with us for a while?

MK, DIAZ: I think 1t's going to be around a while.
I think it 1 at the point right now that exposure traininrg
uf staff in custody situatlons  county jalls, Department of
corrections, law enforcement can help break down their discl-
pline or thelr crganization.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Would you say that that's also
Lrue of the Mexican Mafla?

MR. DIAZ: I'd say about the came.

SENATOR HARMER: Have there been any 1iais?n.hetween
thegse two groups and others who are not as overtly radical
militants? You've already testifiled and other witnesses have

that the Mexican Mafiz and the Aryan Brotherhood have had a
league I gather agalnst the Nuestra Famillia. But I'm asking
now: Do you have any information that would show that there

ag heen inyelvement of the Communist conspiracy in trying to

make contact with these groups or has there heen involvement
by the Costa Nostra with these groups or others who may have
an interest in conspiratorial actlvity in our soclety?

MR. DIAZ: Well, I don't want to label my answer as
é@mmﬁniaﬁ or any particular faction, but there haye been
individuals in contact with this group who advocate yvlolence

and that type of activity and that's crimingl actiyity, also.
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The Venceremes has made contact with people {rom
the Nuestra PFamilia. Of course, the Nuestra Familia has ==
from informatlion that we have -~ a standing, a somewhatl
inflexible coalltion with the Black faction that is genefally
identified as the BGF, the Black Guerilla Family.

Gr' course, they have their counterparts.

SENATOR HARMER: TIs there any type of program to
propagandize the membership of the NF or the Mexican Mafia
with literature which 1s designed to induce them to engage in
conspiratorial esplonage or sabotapge, attacks on law enforcement
officilals, public officlals, husiness leaders, this type of
thing?

MR. DIAZ: One unique phenomena about the NF is that
they're into a heavyy criminal -- 1f you want to use the word --
bag. They are crimlnally oriented. Some of the indlviduals
that have heen known to be more inclined toward revolutionary
types of activity and that aspect of it have lost favor within
the upper echelons of the Nuestra Famillia, In fact, éome of
them had contracts lssued on them.

SENATOR HARMER: Because thelr only interest was
revolution activities?

.MR. DIAZ: Because the Third World trip wasn't
congistent with the indlvyiduals right now at least that are
in command of the Nuestra Familia. I keep checking myself on
names, This indiyidual is turning his organizat;Qn more
toward being a more self-rellant, and an isolatioh pollcey,

if you want to call 1t, for lack of a better word.
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SENATOR HAPMER: So their only activity that you
can identify at the moment is one of overt criminal activity
with no interest, per se, in the Third World Movement?

MR, DIAZ: With certainty, yes, at this point.
There's potential there and there apparently has been some
attempt to get the lNuestra Familia, the Mexican Mafla to quit
hassling gach other and to instead turn and deal with the
oppresglion of the system, so to speak, whether it be the
Department of Corrections or on the outside, on the power
structure.

SENATOR HARMER: We had testimony earlier at a prior
hearing of contact being made by the National Lawyer's Guild
with members of the NF and the Mexican Mafia. Have you had any
experlence in this regard of elther monitoring or checking out
the invelvement of the National Lawyer's Guild or any other
group of lawyers, for that matver, in making contact with these
organizations or attempting to assist them in any way?

MR. DIAZ: 1In all fairness to your question, that
isn't a question that I can answer at this polnt. My involve-
ment in working with this group has been based on trying to
identify its structure, trying to identify its membership and
1ts size, thelr location, activities and what have you. The
whole aspect of thelr dealiﬁgs with, say, the Lawyer's Guild
or this other faction is ore that I haven't explored fully
enough to answer your question for you,

SENATOR HAﬁMEﬁ:

I see, Have you had any contact

or direct association with the Venceremos activity?
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MR. DIAZ: Has the Nuestra Familiaf

SENATOR HARMER: Have you?
MR. DIAZ: No, I haye not.
SENATOR HARMER: Your area of concern is primarily
the Nuestra ‘Familia?
MR. DTAZ: At this point, yes.
SENATOR HARMER: Thank you, Mr. Chalrman.
SENATOR WEDWORTH: One question.
CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth.
SENATOR WEDWORTH; Would you say this is a
sophisticated group compared to orpanized crime or the Mafia?

MR. DIAZ: If you were to term it in terms of

growth, right now it's --
SENATOR WEDWORTH: I mean in operation.

Sophistication in operation.

MR. DIAZ: T will answer your questlon, Senator.

It's in an embryonic stage. It has gained sophistication and

has potential for becoming a prohlem in the community.
SENATOR WEDWORTH: An organization that mlght catceh

on and hold?

MR. DIAZ: Correct. The reason for that like 1%

was mentioned earlier, is that if an individual is in the
community and he's asked to assist thils organization in any,
say, Mexican barrio, what haye you and 1 come from some mysell
and he sald, "No," and assuming he’'s wlth a criminal element
and he then goes into a county Jaii situatlon and is unfortunate

enough to go to an institution and they haye good intelllgence
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in these groups. If the Information gets out thal the guy
was not cooperative, he's in the ihstitution, now he's at
their mercy. But if staff does not pick up on the situation
an indivyidual can be in a lot of hot water and this is where
the Influence factor comes into the community.

SENATOR WEDWORTH; It would seem to be stronger from
a position of intimidation than sophistication?

MR. DIAZ: Correct.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How about the educational level
of these people that you ohbseryved here? Are they college
graduates?

MR. DIAZ: I wouldn't venture to say that there are
college gradﬁates in the group.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Are there some?

MR. DIAZ: I would imagine there are some because
some of the individuals that we have followed up on apparently
have gone on to school with some other program. So there are
some maybe on the outside right now. But to answer your
gquestion: There are some very inteiligent people in this group
repardless of years spent in school, and very‘wise in the ways
of institutional life which you don't get in a college educa-
tion. A college education for a Mexican indiyidual would not
make him any safer in our institution if he wasn't wise to the
ways of exlsting in an institutional structure.

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: Thank you.

SENATOR AYALA: Mr. Diaz, under Article V, Section

III: "No applicant will be granted for membership if he (fthe
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appllicant) misrepresents his qualifications’ . .

What are the qualifications for the organization?

MR. DIAZ: Well, from what we understand an indiyid-
ual is sized up in terms of his aggressiveness, in terms of
deeds that he's performed whether it bhe criminal or noncriminal.
One who would sustaln a lot of questioning and not give up the
group. I want to tie into another section.

Article VI, Section VII. A memher who would be
able to comply with this at all times.

"As of now the standard answer for a Familia when he
1s asked by any county, state, or federal authority if he is
or if there 1s any organlzation known to exist in the pintas..."
Pinta 1s the slang word in Spanish for institution.

", .the answer is no." ,

So in talking about gqualifications they definitely
want people who are not going to claim any association with
the organization. 1In their first step you would see tattoos
of NF or La Famillia or some pretty obvious signs of some
membership and you don't gsee that any more. As a matter of
fact, the standard for recrulting now -~ the term belng used
now -- they have a lot of undercover people who are bhelng
recrulited who are known to be memters only to the person who
recrulted them, that i1s, the Lieutenant in that area, to be
used supposedly to effect NF business. Whateyer they may want
to accomplish at that time.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Let's see, 'In Article V,

Section IV, "Membership of thls organization shall be
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restricted only to those of Latin extraction."

Must a person have a prlson record hefore they're
cligihle?

MR. DIAZ: As far as my knowledge, the 1ssue of
whether they had a prison record or not doesn't enter into it.
The thing 1s that in their recruiting what this organization
sees as a fertile field for development it's very unlikely
they're goling to go and plck a completely stray individual who
one day approached them ahout criminal activity or assault or
vlolence. They're not .going to get anywhere except to report
down to the police that this fellow came up and told us thils.

SENATOR AYALA: 1It's not necessarily true that you
have to haye a police record?

MR. DIAZ: No.

SENATOR AYALA: My question was: What is the
philosophy of the Nuestra Familia?

What is the ohjective? What is the purpose of the
organization?

MR. DIAZ: OQkay. I read that earlier in the stated
purpose. It seems rather innocent when it's read, but when
you go through the whole Constitution, you -~ the primary
purpose =~ thils 1s Article II, Section I.

"The primary purpose or goals of this organization
will he for the tetterment of its memhers and the bullding up
of the organtwuation on thﬂ.outsidevinto é strong and self=
supporting Familla." ‘

Section IT says: "All members '4ill make solely for
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that objectiye and will put all personal goals aﬁé feelipgs
aside until sald fulfillment is accomplished."

| SENATOR AYALA; Bﬁt they have no definition of
What is the betterment of their own memhers?

MR, DIAZ: When you go throughout this whole
Constitution, you find out that you deal with areas of

+discipline which might involye, say, a homicidé; mlight inyolve
a criminal activity. '

SENATOR AYALA: Thank. you.

MR. DIAZ: They're asking the memhers for their
undivided attention and their discilplinary measures are pretty
effective.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Mr. Chairman, I have one other
question.

Do théy have secret signs that you know of or secret
words to identify each ofther?

MR. DIAZ: Well, there were examples that were passed
out, Senator. If you don't have them, we'll get them for you.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: I saw them.

MR. DIAZ: They are some, yes. They have coded
messages; and so forth,

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, I saw the codes and messages
at the previous hearing, but that requires transportation, and
movement from one institution from another, from in to out or
out to in. Within the population of the instituytion itself,
if a new one came in and he didn't bring some communication

with him, written code or something, then do they have a word
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or handshake or something to identlfly the individual?

MR. DIAZ: The individuals are known,

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Onh, they know tefore thgy get
there? |

MR. DIAZ: They know before they get there and 1f
the fellow's delivering a verbal message, i1f it's of enough
importancé,.they‘re‘going to get it in in some'fashion; in
writing, because they recognize each other.

Most of these individuals ~- as a matter of fact,
about 85 per cent -- 211 have a monitor, a block with a white
fence or, you know, and they're known by that nickname.
They're khown a lot easier than by their real name. Most of
these people know each other by their moénitor only and at
sight. So when you say that Babo sent me everybody knows who
Babo 1s.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: . There are several other names that
we heard, too.

| MR. DIAZ: Correct.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Thank! you.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Tha?k you, Mr. Diaz.

Mr. Dan Vasquez. ;

Mr..Vasquez, it's. indicated here that you are also
an employee of the Department of Correctlaons; is that correct?

MR. VASQUEZ: | Yes.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Can you tell us in what capacity
and how long and so forth.

MR. VASQUEZ: I'wve bheen employzd by the Department
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of Corrections for nine years and I'm presently working in
Soledad State Prison, correctional tralning Tacllity, as a
classification and parole representative.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Classification and parole
representative? o

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Would you speak as loudly as
you can 1in the microphone so eﬁeryone can hear.

Do you have a prepared statément or comment to

make?

MR. VASQUEZ: No, Just notes that I had to refresh
my memory here for questioning. ?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. With reference tc
the prisor gangs we are examining, what is your particulav
background or wavez of emphasis? ‘

ME. VASQUEZ: I was one of thie first investigators
48s8lpned by the Department of Corrections to start investigat-
“ng the proups in 1971.

SENATOR CARPENTER: Which groups have you i.vasiigated
Liow? |

MR, VARMUEZ: I've investirpated Nuestra Familia,
tire Mexican Mafla, the Aryan Brotherhood, é iittle of the-
~.uek Queriila Family, and the Venceremes organization and 1ts
coennection with the prison ganegs,

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: All,right. "Do you hév& anythine
to add to My. Diaz' comments with repard o the organi<stion

st.ructures and what have you. He talked mostly about NB
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MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. One of the Senators, T belleve,

was asking about the codes or different kinds of codes and the

codes of the monitors, as Mr. Diarz referrcd to, was ol course,

the nickhame, which 1s éomething very characteristic of
Mexlcan~Americans, They give you a nicknaﬁe when you're a
small child in the neighborhood and 1t stays with you.

For example, there is one of the members of the

Mexican Mafla known as Champ from Hazard. Hazard 1s a street.

Hazard Avenue in East Los ‘Angeles. Throﬁghout the whole
prison system there's not another Champ from Hazard. There's
only one. |

I Just wanted to add that.

The Mexlcan Mafia organization and its potential

first came to our attention in 1971 when I was particlpating

in a federally fﬁnded proJect that was assigned to a unlversity.

We had a parole unit attached to it and we were going to be
looking at new ways, lnnovative ways of supervlsing alcoholic

and drug recidivists and trylng to get more mileage out of

them in the community and hopefully making thém agents of change

through some college courses and organizing and setting them
up in jobs, in self—helpvgroups in the community.

The Mafla very effectively infiltrated our program
and almost took it over.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: The Mexican Maflia inflltrated
yourvgovernmént rehéhilitation or change program and‘nearly
took It over?

MR. VASQUEZ: That's correct.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: For what yeason?
MR. VASQUEZ: Well, for a varlety of reasons. At

that time the Mafla was experimenting in political yentures

and thils program -~ I beliewe, 1n analyzing 1t, that they felt

it was a ready made program. It had money avallable. It had

contacts with community members and community organizations.

It had political contacts to recelve funding from the National

Institute of Mental Health. So I think it was a very vital

program that they saw as very lucratlve.

" CHATRMAN CARPENTER: At what point does it determine

that this takeover was intended or involved?
| MR. VASQUEZ;: You mean when did we find out it was
happening?
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes'.
MR. VASQUEZ: I think it took us about four months

after the heginning of the program to notlce that there wvas

something going on. When we first started having contact wlth

the Mafla members, we weren't aware that they were an organlzed

prison group. We looked at and interpreted their militancy

as sort of prevalling. The attitude in that period was the

social movemenf type of attitudé; So that's what we thought
they were kind of involved in.

It soon became apparent that they were using that
more or iess "front" to further their activities, thelr self
on to the communities, and a lot of your communities in
partlicular. ‘ i

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Well, when you refer to this
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activity and this takeover and these intentions, were these
things directed or fostered from within, from inside
institutions?

MR. VASQUEZ: . Yes, they were.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Has the control of organizations
like the Mafia and NF always heen within the institution?

MR. VASQUEZ; Well, can you rephrase that? Ask me
that quéstion again.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; Well, I'm trying to get at where
the headgquarters is located: Inéide or outslde. Are these
organizations' leaders that we've heard about mostly on the
inside? Do they direct these activities outside from within
the walls?

MR. VASQUEZ: That does occur and there is also
leaders in the community areas.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Are those usually former
prisoners who have heen discharged?

MR. VASQUEZ: Oh, yes. Not discharged. Some are
on parole, some discharged, but thelr responsihility is that
community, that barrio, ghetto area. Their responsibility 1is
to organize the narcotics in the area, fencing operations,
burglarizing, robbery rings. I've seen much of this. |

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, let’s take an inmate who
has gone out on parole. Would not association with other
criminals he a violation of his parole?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, 1t would. It's a technical

violation of parole.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; IHave there heen paroles re-
yoked by virtue of this type of activity?

MR. VASQUEZ; Most certalnly, yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What methods are used by these
organizations to transfer theif activities from the inside out
to the streets?

MR. VASQUEZ: Okay. First of all, let me preface
it by this statement: The culture within the prison is a life-
style in itself. That is what I feel penology 1s all about,
is understanding that lifestyle. These men come from certain
communitiles. For example, one man may come from the East
Los Angeles area. He's going to be paroled. Naturally, in
most cases, he's going to go right back to the East Los
Angeles area. |

So he goes out already prepared with instructions
who to contact to start his activities, the organlzed
activities within the community that will support the people
still inside the institutlon. |

‘ CHATRMAN CARPENTER; All right. Do all these
organizations seem to have a dedicatlon to keeping people in
them for 1life?

MR. ‘VASQUEZ: That's true.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; There's no easy ingress and
egress to the organization as, we understand organizatlons, but
a person on the inside who gets involved wlth. one of these
organizations hy‘chOice or otherwlse who wants to do hils tlme

and go back to society and lead a different kind of life
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doesn't have a chanee, does he?

ME. VASQUEZ: s yvepy dEFPLeatl Genator,  These
groups do oxert. o lol of prescure on the lTnmate and T bhans
been to the point where an inmate had to choose. HEspeclally
the Mexlcan-American inmate would have to choose between the
Nuestra Familia or the Mexican Mafia. It came to that kind of
critical point.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: And that cholce continues after
he gets out? '

MR. VASQUEZ: Once he gets into these organizations,
he's expected to function primarily for the organization.

His family and his parole success is secondary. The organiza-
tion is his primary responsibility.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. But when ﬁe gets

out and goes back to his family in, suppose, East Los Angeles,

perhaps he gets a Job. I guess in the time honored expresslon,

"He wants to go straight." Somebody from the organization
comes to him and says, "You must participate.“

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, that's happened.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Participate 1n narcotilcs,
armed robbery --

MR. VASQUEZ: Hiding a fugitive or something 1like
that.

SENATOR CARPENTER: What do you think his options
are at that point?

MR. VASQUEZ: . He'd hetter do as he's asked.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you think they're that
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pervasivé?
| MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. You asked Mr. Diaz a question

whether the communities knew of the existence of these
organizations. I would like to add somethinpg on that. They
most definitely do know of the exlstence, most especlally in
the barrio communities, the urban plight areas like East Los
Angeles and San Jose that has a high concentration of Mexlcan-
Americans.

They are aware of the existence of thaese groups.
I've investigated instances where the Mexican Mafla has made
threats against famlily members because thelr son was a member
of the Nuestra Familia crganization. I've actually gone 1nto
East Los Angeles communicies and lnvestigated these kinds of
threats and they have proven to be valld. They were true.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What about the Brown Berets that
we hear of occasionally? Are they assoclated with any of
these groups or are they outcroppings of the Familia?®

MR. VASQUEZ: No, as far as I can determine. OF
course, this group, the Brown Berets, you don't hear too much
of %hem any more. I think they're kind of fading out. In all
of my investigations I have never seen any connection with the
Brown Beret Party and these radical prison groups.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Are there many rehabilitation
programs of the type you mentioned previously?

At what university did this event occur?

MR. VASQUEZ: This occurred at Cal Poly, Pomona.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And this federally funded
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rehahilitation program was established there?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, Well, I'd like to add that the
program 1s dolng well now that this element has heen reméved.
It was our first opportunity to watch it and study 1t as 1t was
actually trying to organize itself and this information was
being disseminated to the Director of Corrections who allowed
us to continue to study the group almost on an undercover
assignment basis although we were participating, studying and
reporting its activities to the central office.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have any recommendation
for the prevention of this activity?

MR. VASQUEZ: VWell, I don't know what we can do to
prevent it. I, think that these types of groups are going to
be with us for many , manyAyéars to come and I don't know what
we can do to prewent it. I think we can prepare ourselves to
deal with it more effectively than we have in the past hy
training of our staff. For example, in my position as a
caretaker, so to speak, of the classification system of my
institution, I can make recommendations based on my knowledge
of the groups to staff about placement or transferring, or
‘if I know that a member of the group is going to another
instltution, it's my responsihility to call that institution
and advise them that you have a certain individual from a
certaln group that has been identified that is going to he
recelved hy your institution.

S0, I think it's ncw up to the Department to deal

with it and they are dealing with it in many forms and fashions.

-104-

The training that I spoke of. I've given maybe a hundred hours
of training in radical groups. I make a polnt to study them
myself. I try to understand where theylre at phllosophically,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Would you give us what knowledge
you have with regard to the Venceremos organization and 1ts
relationship and involvement with.thesé other organizations
with which 'you are familiar?

MR. VASQUEZ: Well, the Venceremos organization had
contact that I know of with members of the Mexlcan Mafla.
One ‘particular individual who was contacted was the "Godfather"
of the Mafia. The man was incarcerated in the Los Angeles
County Jail and one inmate who was by the Venceremos organiza-
tion and his accomplice -- in particular his accomplice ==
visited this gentleman in the Los Angeles County Jail and from
this man received instructions on who to contact to try to
sell SOme stolen jewelry to obtain money to continue their
flight.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What do you méaﬁ when you refer
to a rescue? Do you mean a break?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, In Octohen of 1972; Runaway
Beady was rescued hy the Venceremos organlzation and Officer
Jess Sanchez was assassinated.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: And that was a Venceremos
operation?

MR. VASQUEZ:  That's corprect.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; What's happened follow-up to
that? ‘
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MR. VASQUEZ: There have heen two people convicted
or murder in the second degree and also rescue or lynching
I think. it's called. And I think there are two or four
more people that are beilng prosecuted in the Los Angeles County
area for charges that stem out of that rescue.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: How would you describe the
Venceremos organization?

MR. VASQUEZ: A very dangerous, radical organiza-
tlon that espouses the violent overthrow of the government as
we know it now.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: To your knowledge is this
organlzation still in existence?

MR, VASQUEZ: It's my understanding that this
organlzation has broken into smaller cells, smaller units
which make 1t harder for detection by law enforcement agencies
and I think some easier operation basis for themselves. But as
far as I can determine, I thlnk it's still in operation.

It has different names.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What type of activity do you
suggest that they are capable of or that falls within the realm
of their intentions? . You mentioned prison breaks as one.

MR, VASQUEZ: Yes. Well, you know, if you're an
organization that wishes to recruit prisoners -- for example,
it was explained to me by Mr. Beady that the Venceremos
organlzatlon thought it was very wise, a good idea to have
prisoners recruited that had overcome the fear of fatal

violence, for example, or prisoners or inmates that had
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experience in committing armed robheries and burglariles.
This was behavylor or experience that thils group could utiliée,

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: This individual who escaped
that you mentioned, Mr. Beady. Was he a member of Venceremes
before he went in?

MR. VASQUEZ: No, he wasn't.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: He was recrulted on the inside?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. I think it was a progressive
thing rather than an instantaneous recruiting. I think it
went over a period of time where they analyzed him and he
analyzed them and I guess they felt they could work together.
I think Mr. Beady, even in his own testimony, has indicated
that he Just used this group for an escape.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you know of a rescue
attempt made in San Dlego?

MR. VASQUEZ: There was a planned rescue attempt,
but it never came off.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Could you teli us about that?

MR. VASQUEZ: Well, that occurred, I think, in
December of '72. It was durlng the investigatlon of the rescue
and murder that occurred in 8an Bernardino County at the Chino
institution for men. We went into the residénce of a man on
parole who we knew that associétéd with. Mr. Beady prior to his
escape and in the’search of the residence we found a letter
that had been written out of the San Dlego Coﬁnty Jall which
had some plans for a Jall break from the Courthousé similar

to what happened in Marin County. Hostages were going to be
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taken. They would be taken to the airport and an airplane
would he demanded for flight to Cuba.
CHATRMAN CARPENTER: In the course of the investlga-
tion was it determined to have been a Venceremos operation? ”
MR, VASQUEZ: No, it was not. ‘It appeared more
likely to be a Black Liberation Army operation because there
was some mention of the Vanguard Suicide Squad which 1is
associated with some elements of the BGF and also with the
Black Liberation Army.
CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth, do you have
some questions?
SENATOR WEDWORTH.: No.
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala?
SENATOR AYALA: Yes. |
You mentioned the Cal Poly grant for some program
that you had. What was the name of the program?
MR. VASQUEZ: Project Span.
SENATOR AYALA: Project ~- ?
MR. VASQUEZ: Project Span, S-p-a-n. It was a
special program for alcoholism and narcotics.
SENATOR AYALA: This is to rehabllitate these people
or prevention thereof?
MR. VASQUEZ: Prevention therecf and new approaches
in trying to deal with alcoholic and drug recidivists.
SENATOR AYALA: Was this a night class for adults,
day students, what kind of class?

MR. VASQUEZ: It was a 24-hour program where they

»
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lived on the campus.

SENATOR ‘AYALA: On the campus. I see.

MR. VASQUEZ; And participated 1n courses there at
the university and also worked with community~based organiza-
tions.

SENATOR AYALA: Is that still existing today?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, 1t is.

SENATOR AYALA: My other question is: What 1s the
makeup of the Venceremos organization from thé ethnic point of
view? Is it’strictly glacks or Chicanos or ls it a mixture --

| MR. VASQUEZ: It's a mixture. It's a Third World
mixture. K

SENATOR AYALA: Is it like the Familia®?

MR. VASQUEZ: No, it's multi-ethnic.

CHAIRMAN CARPyNTER; ' Senator Wedworth, f

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Are you aware of activities such
as you have described at one campus of that type'of activity
on other campuses in this state?

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Can you name some of them?

MR. VASQUEZ: UCLA.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What's the name of the program?

MR. VASQUEZ: Well, UCLA, there was a gentleman that
was trying to organize sort of a fratern@ty house only 1t was
a nocial movement, Chicano social movement Type of assoclation
with students. In fact, he waS»géipg to name it the La Familla

Cultural Center or something like this, but thls didn’'t prpgréss.

~-109~



We were able to hring it to the attention of the staff.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That was not a federally funded
program or any type of funded program?

MR. VASQUEZ: I belleve some of those organlzations
do recelve some federal money to organize their cultural
centers.

SENATOR WEDWORTH : Any other campuses you are aware
ofr?

MR. VASQUEZ: At this point I can't recall other than
Cal Poly and UCLA.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Cal Poly and UCLA.

MR. VASQUEZ: Well, there was two. The Mafia
attempted to take over a program that was started in, I think
it was UCLA also, and it was a Pinto program or prisoner's
program. Pinto is a very popular slang word for brisoners.

It was to take the paroled convict into the university setting
and utilize the resources available from the university for
housing and loans for books and so forth and so on and go into
a formal education program. There was attempt by the Mafia
organlzation to infiltrate that program. In fact, one member
was actually accepted into it bhut he falled it.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How did he fail? You mean the
examination?

MR. VASQUEZ: No, he started the courses hut then

he didn't follow through withbthém. He was réquested by

mewhers of the Marfia to engage in certain actiyities and now he

1s wanted for two coﬁnts.of murder. He's a fpgitivé,

1
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SENATOR WEDWORTH.; Just two college

You'tre ayare of?

campuses 1s all

MR. VASQUEZ: yes.

SENATOR CARPENTER: Mp, Vasquez, the material youtye

Submitted on the Black Guerilila Family and

MR. VASQUEZ: That information was picked up, taken

f .
Tom a prisoner while he was being searched to be placed in

administrative Segregation. They go through their property

A4
ve ry thoroughly and that document was in his property

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Is this information readiiy

avallable on the inside?

v , - L
MR. VASQUEZ: 1Is this information availabio to who?

MU TSI AN T
UL AT RMAN CARPENTI(R Well, a VORI BT s dooraant

manifest o, 1ieg and regulations,

J,!yu‘ YI\:‘ o, - g .
R VASQUR: . Mo, that's Usually information @

LRI

that prigoner is BOiNE to Leern oretty well hiddey

T osutmi++

another doc nt oo o At . o
ument as weiy, Sometnlng thot was' writter

™ . ;
INYFIS % i 2 i Wl ! 4 '
«IY Quentin when Wounded Knee Was pretty mush in ‘ve seea and
fhat Boolairrl In o gievy e £ |
VowWan laand o in oo hatt's lemg] property hiiden loniae oome
‘,'j'." g ™ Y o oyt
AleseripL, jepa] manuscript he was getting ready o b orueen
fr, 60 9 B T e oF |

W Lhrog, lesal myin,
| CLiATRMAN CARPuKTER: Weil, this data andg Lnlermadon
then is in crgence eoﬁtraband on the inside. |

The ragauryg. Yes, it is.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: It gotg there as we have bad

sestimeny sreviousls .,
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MR. VASQUEZ: To be found 1n the possession of that
type of a document would throw some shadow or some doubt on
blm as to possibly heing a member or associate of this organ-
lzatlon., It's not a document they like to share with staff.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator?

SENATOR AYALA: Just a quick question. Golng back

to the Cal Poly program, what organization attempted to take

1t over?

MR. VASQUEZ: The Mexican Mafia attempted to take
it over.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Vasquez, thank you very
much,

MR. VASQUEZ: You're welcome.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; Call Mr. Joe Moody.

Mr. Moody, state for us your place of employment
and responsibilities.

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir. 1I'm a special agent with the
U. 8. Department of Justiée, drug enforcement administration.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Drug enforcement administration?

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; I believe you have a statement‘
which you will read.

MR. MOODY: VYes, I will read a statement or report
that has been prepared hy myself and other people that have
testified here of information gathered over the past couple of
years regarding malnly the Mexican Mafia, but also the other
groups.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. Will you proceed
with that?

MR. MOODY: My testimony 1s golng to be directed
mainly towards the Mexlcan Mafla, the Nuestra PFamllia and
the Aryan Brotherhood who exist both inside and outside the
prison system. Although I will not direct my.attention towards
the Venceremos and other rélated Third World Rewvolutionariles,
I.héliﬁve that from testimony given by others; that their role
in prison violence and organized crime is not wlthout due
recognition. The interaction between these groups has contrilb-
uted to the overall growth. and strength of the prison gangs
by providing them with a sophistlcated system of communication;
legal support, and in some cases provided subsistence to gang
memhers released to parole.

There are a number of criminally Qriented‘groups
operating both within and outside of the California prison
system. Three major groups stand out because of theilr power
and influence on the "streets" and in the yarlous institutlons.
These tightly knit, formal organizations are made up of
prison inmates and parolees and they are known to bé actively
involved in narcotic trafficking, ektortion; contract killings
and robberles.

The first such group 1s the Aryan Brotherhood. This
is a group made up of white supremist individﬁals; many of
‘whom were active iﬁ‘various outlaw motorcycle gangs. The .
Afyan Bro%herhood and Mexican Mafia haye formed an alllance

based on narcotic control and‘the hatred for hlacks. It 1s
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further known that the Aryan Brolhcrhood accepts "hith
contracts from the Mexican Mafla In ovrder {o draw unwanted
attentlon away from the Mexlcan Mafia's nclivities.

The second powerful group 1s the Nuestra Familia,
or the New Famlily, or Our Family. The stated goal of this
group 1s to bulld up an organization outside of prison into
a self-supporting family; whose primary concern 1s the
control of narcotics. For thls reason they are constantly
at war wlth the Mexlcan Mafia.

The third and most powerful of these prison oriented
groups 1s the Mexlcan Mafia. The interrelationship’ between
these groups has created a power hase in the prison system that
has penetrated free society.

In the latter part of 1958, members of the various
barrio gangs from the greater Los Angeles area, while in the
California Youth Facility, Tracy, California, formed a gang.
This gang was not much different from the nelghhorhood gangs
in the Los Angeles are, wlith the exception that 1t consisted
of persons that were in the prison system. This ney prigon
gang had a new meaning; it had a name; a name.otgen than %
harrio or nelghborhood name. The "Mexican Mafla,t La’EME; o
the Big "M" was something altogether new in Californfa. There
is always small groups 1in everyipriSOn, The§e groups are
usually’refenred to as a "Tip", a "Click," or a "Pamily;" but -
never had any rea1 meanipg other than cloge friendship or a

mutual business arrangement. What gaye thls new gang such-a

penetrating effect was that it was in no way like the others: -
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Usually a Mexican-American gang in prison is the
reunion of individuals from the same barrio or the same
nelghborhood; purely a prison thing. Up until the formation
of the Mexican Mafla, prison gangs in California never had a
name other than the barrio name from the "streets" of the
city, and this was usually a territorial name; for example,
the "Splders from Whitefence," the“First Street Flips from
Flats," the "Buzzards from Santa Monica," et cetera. At the
inception of the Mexican'Mafia, it seemed only a self-protec-
tion union issued only to protect possessions of 1ts members.
However, soon afterwards it was used to infliet 1ts will on
other inmates, in order to control the various "hustles"
in the prisons, such as, canteen, clgarettes, éambling and
sex, the things that are considered valuable to the prison
inmate. This organizatlion grew in number and spread throughout
the California prison system, and untll 1966, was confined
solely to the prisons, so that as a member was paroled or
discharged to free society, he was no longer committed to the
organization and would ultimately return to his community
and reaffirm his allegiance to the neighborhood gangs from
which he originated.

During the early days of this organization, members

were chosen for their leadership in the barrios, their

instinct in the prison ang rebellious attitudes, alsop for

what they had done in the way psychopathic moves to prove

their convictiomws and how well they executed thelr moves. The

candidates would also be well sereened before'their nomination.

~115-~



After a subject was nomlnated for memberstitp, all othevr

members of the Mafla throuphout the prisonn would have Lo

vote on his acceeptance. Only with the approval of all memboers

would he become part of this group. Before and agaln after his

acceptance, the prospective member weuld have to swear an oath

to the organization, and cut any bonds or close ties with
"Homeboys", friends from their barrio, something very

difficult for most ghetto Mexicans. However, once thils was
done, the feeling of "brotherhood" was much closer.

In the early 60's the gang known as La Eme, or

Mexlcan Mafla, had grown beyond the bounds of an ordilnary

pang. Its discipline had allowed its adherents to spread power
throughout the entire California prison system. In the mid-
"60's 1ts viciousness and long-term effect became
institutlonallized in the San Quentin facility. This situation
wus brought about through the Mexlican Mafia's contact with

the long term hard-core inmates in the lower yard of this
institution. It was here that heroin for the first time became
a maln source of income and reason for combat. Heroin in the
prison 1s used to ease the pain of being restricted or confined,
and heroin in the hands of the Mexican Mafia in the San
Quentin yard was of much value for the Mafia's development.
The Mafia knew that 1If heroin was controlled then the non-
committed prisoner could be used against Mexican Mafia's
enemies. This was a lesson taught by the long-term prison
inmate, and 1t was he that would become the backbone of the

disecipline, and organization of this group. It was the long-

A
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termer who enforced and contlnued to reinforce the fear

factor so necessary for control of any prison. Unknown to
most of the "soldiers" of the Mexican Mafia at the time,

was that their use of fear as a tactic inside the Prison became
the first step toward organized crimingl activity as it now
exists outside of prison.

One of the reasons the Mexican Marfia grew so
bowerful in the prisons was that a member was not expected to
get along or to take g liking to all its "brothers," but was
expected to be on time when needed. A member must at all
times understand that he is committed to death with all who
belong to the "Brotherhood." 4 member of this "Brotherhood"
does not, under any circumstances, threaten the life of
another. To threaten another member's 1ife would show
emotional instability and‘é cause to suspect weakness and
fatal ignorance. There is always a constant evaluation of
each member's intentions ang motives. The Mexican Mafia
regards an attack with a weapon on another "brot ker" for solely
personal reasons as g capital offense. It was not this way
with the other "?ips" or gangs inside prison, which made the
Mafia unique. |

Usually in prison there is a mutual respect for
every prisoner to do his "time" the way he sees fit. There
are some things that g prisonerzis instinétively expected not
to do in tvhe way of making it wcomfortable for his fellow
prisoner, i.e., respect towards private property. - However

, 5

th ‘
 ese naturally established rules that existed in San Quentin
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ican Mafia
at this time were totally disregarded by the Mexica s

£ Yained Lo
and are still more disregarded today as they pertaln

"
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want to keep thelr name clean among the prison population.

For the prisoner, there is no place to go and only two

alternatives, maybe three. Do the will of the loanshark

and make payments or do him favors; go to the authopities
and ask for protection, or pick up a knife and put the loan-
shark out of busilness.

As soon as the Mexlcan Mafia controls the yard and
the loansharks of a prison facility, they begin to use these
indebted presoners to do a lot of the messy work that could
not be done by the Mafla, because of exposure. The Mafia

often had these prisoners, who were in debt, fill contracts

to murder someone to pay off the debt. Whenever the Mexican

Mafla was to execute another prilsoner, to enforce thelr will
on the yard, they would choose an indebted prisoner who was
trying to pay off hls debt. He would be looked over and
chosen according to how "prison-wise” he was and how well he
could lure the prisoner who was to be assassiggted into a good
spot, so that the guards could not see the execution. Heroin
1s the most effectivé way to lure an unsuspecting victim.

In all the time that the Mexican Mafia has been in
exlstence, there had never been more than fifteen members in
the main population of any one particular prilson in Californls,
mostly because of thelr aggressive attitude. Progressively
throughout the years, the member that remalned on the "main
line" grew smaller, whille the ﬁumber grew.in the lockup areas,

solitary, segregation and adjustment centers. Because the

Mafia controlled the lock up areas, most prisoners were not
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almost completely reluctant to oppose anything that the few
members in the main population chose to do, for fear of being
sent to lockup areas.

The men who make up the bulk of the Mexican Mafla
spend long periods of time confined in the lockup areas inslde
thelr cells. They find themselves in a sultable position to
recrult and‘indoctrinaté potential members from other
prisoners who were also confined in segregation for some of the
reasons that the Mafla members were "locked down." Further
because of the long period of lockup, these Mafia members spent
most of their time planning new strategies to inflict terror
on the rest of the prison population. As a result, the Mexican
Mafia used 1solation and iockups for recrultment of the hard-
core, aggresslve, assaultive oriented inmates, those who would
operate from a base of force and terrorism to control the
criminal activities within the prison.

During the latter part of 1971, the Mexlcan Mafla
began to purge and thereby strengthen its membership. The
purging of ranks took form in assassination of 1ts weaker
members. The weaknesses that the Mafla could not tolerate
were doubt and hesitatlion. Any hesitation, sign of weakness
or fear, would have to be answered for and could very easily
result in a member's own death, for not keeping with the
discipline. There was no question as to the fate of the
informer, even i1f his so-called weakness took place many years
prior to becoming a member. Also the constant feverish pitch

of fear had to be maintalned, so that a Mafla member that did
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not impose the will of the Mafia on other prison inmates
became himself a target of his own organlzation.

Because of the vliolent effects of the Mexican Mafila
in the prisons, other groups that were patterned after the
Mafia began to emerge. One such group was the Nuestra
Familia, or new family. This "Tip" or gang, 1s mainly made
up of Mexlcan-Americans from the rural areas of California,
as opposed to the Mafia, which is made up of individuals from
the urban areas. Unlike the Mexlcan Mafia, the Nuestra
Familia was not selective in its recruitment of members,
and only recrulted for quantity in an attempt to loosen the
control the Mafia had on the "rackets" in prison. "War"
between these "clicks" broke out on September 18, 1968, in
San Quentin, and for the following years continued leaving
numerous prisoners dead and many others seriously stabbed. The
result of this conflict was an increase in the prestige of
the Mexlcan Mafia, and polarization of both the La Familia
and the Mafla.

As warfare continued between these groups, other
"elicks" began to take up sides with one or the other of the'
Mexican groups. The Aryan Brotherhood aligned 1tself with the
Mafia and some of the Blacks in prison moved on the side of
the La Familia. The Mexlcan Mafia and Aryan Bfotherhood had
agreed to make "hits" for each other, based on the avallabill-
ity of the group to reach the 1ntended victim. The Aryan
Brotherhood is made up of approximately BOXtO a hundred members,

and we're talking about hard-core members. However, agaln,
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1ike the Maufla, Lhelr members are made up of some of the most
violent prisoners in the (Callfornin pr*son system, whlch makes
them equally effective in spreading terror among the prison

population.

Information received from now incarcerated prisoners,

who were former members of the Mafia, report that Rudolfo
Cadena was, until his death, the Mafia's most respected
member. These informants stated that Cadena's long range
plan for the organization was to first gain the confidence
and support of the Mexlcan community of East Los Angeles by
assisting in the "Chicano" movements. After support of these
groups was achieved, then the Mafia would move into the
criminal activity, using the total community as a "front."

On December 17, 1972, thé Mexican Mafia témporarily
postponed the idea»of infiltrating the community movement.
And I emphasize the word "postponed." This was the day that
' the Nuestra Familla executed Rudolfo Cadena, the original
promoter of this idea. Cadena receivedkSO stab wounds in his
chest and back and died.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Where did that Qccur?

MR. MOODY: That occurred in Chino.

After the killing of Cadena, a few Mafia members
who were consildered leaders in thelr respective institutions,
were ordered to kill any Famlilia member that they could get
their hands on. Many refused to kill Nuestra Familig members
for various reasons. Some had parole dates, others admitted

later they were tired of all the killings. However, because
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of thelr refusal to follow the willl of the Brotherhood,
"Contracts” on thelr lives were igsued by other Mafia members.
Because of the firm grip the Marfia had on prisonérs,'the only
escape was to have correctional authorities lock him up 1n
protective custody.

In the latter part of 1971, the first steps were
taken by the Mexican Mafla to appolnt a leader to organize
and coordinate criminal enterprises in free society. The
Mafia had come to the reallzation that if the fear of the
prison lnmate 1s controlled, 1t must be necessarily so that
the criminal operating in free soclety, who i1s in constant
fear of returning to the prison system, must also be aware of
this power. The next step for the Mexican Mafla was to place
members in free soclety and "reap the harvest 1t had sown"
in prison.“ The choice of a leader of the Mafia on the outéide
marked the first time that Mafia organizational ability had
become completely amalgamated with discipline and goals to&ard
the syndication of narcotlic trafficking in Californla. This
was now truly organlized crime in its embryonic stages.

During the next several months, a law enforcement
task force, actively investigating the Mexlican Mafla was able
to identify the members, leaders and goqls of this group.
Beéause the main objective of the Mexican Marfia was the control
of'heroin‘trafficking, Drug Enforcement Administration became
actively involved in the investlgation.

Prior to a concerted effort by the California

Department of Corrections and local law ernforcement agenciles,
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an incarcerated member of the Mafia who wanted to leave the
Mafia, had no alternative other than to fight the crganization
and eventually be killed or go to the prison authorities and
be locked in protective custody for the rest of his term.

Thlis was an awkward position for any prisoner and especially
an inmate of.-the caliber of a Mafia member.

Offlclals are of the opinion that the Mexican Mafia
1s at the present time the strongest prison gang in the
California Prison System. The investigation of this group
reveals that 1t has made several unsuccessful attempts to
take over control of narcotic trafficking, murder for hire
and several federally funded self-help projects in California
communities. The main reason for the Mafia's failure in
thelr attempts to control major criminal activities has been
the organized and concerted effort of the California
Department of Corrections and local law enforcement agencies
through arrests of Mafia members and a continued monitoring
of thelr activitles, both inside and outside of prison.

In view of the following factors, the Mexican
Mafla's potential for refiniﬁg and expanding in the communities
»of Callfornia is a constant and grave threat.

The base power firmly established over the past 15
years in the Califcrnia prison system and its growth through
the use of terror and forced tactics has left over 80
deceased victims.

The direct ties with narcotile traffickers in Mexico,

who come in contact with the Mexican Mafia as former prisoners

—la.ll—

of the California System or as previous suppliers of
individual members. |

The ever present base of ggeraﬁ}ons for criminal
actlvities in the neighborhoods throughout Callfornla.

The established reputation:and continued willingness
to utilize terror and yiolence to achieve the goals of the
Mexican Mafia.

The efforts generated toward the immobilization
of the Mexican Mafia and other related prison gangs has
revealed that an enormous amount of resourcés exist in the
California Department of Corrections, concerning narcotic
trafficking. Most major narcotic dealers 1in Californla have at
one time or another heen incarcerated 1n the California
Department of Correctlions and were subséquently released to
parole supervislon. This demonstrates a continulng need for
drug enforcement admlnistration to further develop and maintaink
a close w(rking relationship wlth the resources avallahle
through this agency. |

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Moody, the problems we've
been dealing with -~ and of course, our main concern 1s 1n
relation to‘California -— are. thésé organizations actlve or are
comparable organizations active in the federal prison system
to your knowledge? .

MR. MOObY: I haven't really studled that aspect
of 1t. However, I haye heard from informéd soﬁrces that they
have spread'to the federal faclllities. o

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: When we talk ahout more than 80
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deatheé and murders and more than 300 stabbings, are these
all the regult of violent gang activity or the overwhelming
majority og.theg, or is 1t possible to say?

MR. MOODY: I would say the overwhelming majority.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You refer to the lockup situation
in a way that intrigued me or the Zock down as they call it
now as a devlice which the Department has utilized that has had
some lmpact in some areas; but in a sense you almost made 1t
sound llke maybe 1t doesn't work that well hecause the Mafia
controls the lock up area by having the majorlty of the people
there. This in and of 1tself becomes an‘enforcement tool for
them, I think you indlcated?

MR. MOODY: It could. However, when we're talklng
about the lock down situation at the time the Mafia was
recrulting, we're talking about a time when the Californila
Department of Corrections wasn't quite as sophlsticated as
they are today in identifying members of this organization.
The Department of Corrections I know has spent an awful lot of
time in the past two years trylng to ldentify these people so
that they}can geparate them in the institution.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, I'm impressed that that's
true., My only problem is that in looking at that device, I
mean, it has its outer limits in terms of numhérs of people
and the Impact i1t's. golng to have. I can see how it might
be fruitful for short perlods of time with Iimited numhers of
people,; but in the long run, it's kind of a frightening

enforcement technique to have to use, particularly if they have
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to use 1t on the basis of suspicion, it could work to the
detriment of individual prisoners who probably ought not to
be caught up in it or may not want to be but have no place
else to go.

With regard to narcotic control and in partic..lar
with inside traffic, can you of your own knowledge tell us
about violence that arises from that or what the competition
is between the Mafia and the other organlzations for na;cotic
distribution in the system in California, in your opinion?

MR. MOODY: TI couldn't speak as any kind of an
expert on that. I haven't studied inside distrihution of
narcotics. .

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, when we think about
he}oin, say, as the ultimate control of narcotics, as méybe
?he most sought after by users who are on the inside, we also
ﬁhiﬁk of it primarily as a very expensive hahit.

MR. MOODY: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: At least on the street. Assum-~
ing access and avallability on the inside, how would one go ‘
ahout supporting it? You're going to have a hell of a time
making it with cigarettes. 1Is it barter or exchange?

MR. MOODY: Well, I know of several ways that they
do support i1t. One is from money coming from outside, families,
friends. Other ways have been exﬁortion. The Mafila has used
exborﬁion on other inmates.» I can't give you any specilfile

names, but I have seen instances where we have had reports

. that- the Mafia has approached weaker prisoners inslde the
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ingtitution and threatened him and told him that his mother
or wife or whatever he had, whatever type of connectlon he
had outslde, was to send so much money to so and so at a
¢certain place in order to support his habit.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I see. So the payment is golng
t¢ be forced on the outside in order to effect delivery on
the inslde?

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have some opinions
about what you think can or should be done to correct this
sltuation with regard to these gangs and the violence involved?

MR. MOODY: Well, based on the study that I have
made in the last almost two years now, I look at the organiza-
tions, the Mafla, the Nuestra Familia and the others, as having
two points to be attacked. One is their strong point which is
a dlsclpline, and the second, their weak poilnt, whidh is the
narcotlc users.

So at the outset, we attack the weak one, the user.
He 1s vulnerable to arrest. He's also in violation of the law
30 the user 1s a vulnerable to the police because he's usually
stealing to support his hablt or robblng or whatever. So we
should attack that side of 1t to begin with. The other point
was the discipline that the organization had that had to be
attacked. In my report I talked about the Mafla's strengthen-
Ing its organlization by putting out hit contracts on weaker
members. These memberé to them were weak, but as it turned

out, they were stronger than the members that had put the

-128-

contract on them. So that when we would find out that a
member was to be hit hy his organlzation, we would contact him
and talk to him and ask him for information regarding the
organization and try to guarantee his psychologlcal and

physical safety.

If we took a prisoner out of the system, we would
oftentimes have to place him in some small Jail or hide him
here or hide him there or transfer him around the State.

So this is what we did for the past year. This 1s how we

attack the discipline in the orgénization. Some of these members
that came over and worked with us were some of the stronger
members in years past of the Mafila.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: How do you see these organiza-
tions progressing?

How do you see them now? As sophisticated, highly
organized and what do you think they will turn into?

MR. MOODY: No, I don't helieve that they are
highly sophisticated. In the institutions they are well
organized. On the streets they've made several attempts to

organize and have run into a block wall, but I think they learn
by their mistakes. I think that the bulk of the membershilp

is made up of just common criminals rather than péople that

arc thought of to be an executive-type of cr;minal, a planning
eriminal. But there are elements in the organization that

have the ability to plan and carry out sophisticated criminal

activities.
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What is the roadblock to
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erganizing on the outslde?

Do you think that Just the nature of frecdom
prohibits this actlvity?

MR. MOODY: Well, from what I have seen the one
big roadblock was that they carried over their homicidal
tendencles from the institution to the streets which drew
attention on them that they shouldn't have had drawn on them
and this was what brought them down in the last instance that
they attempted to organize narcotic traffic.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: You mean 1f they'd stuck with
narcotics or other types of crime, from a growth point of view,
they would have been better off than getting into homicide?
They mlght not haye been as recognizable compared to other
groups and indlviduals as they are now?

MR. MOODY: 1In my opinion, yes.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Sehator Wedworth?

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Yes. Mr. Moody, what do you
suggest that soclety can do to abolish this thing? We pay our
taxes; we hlre experts; and yet wi: Tesl that our results are
not what they should be. We're even sliding maybe backwards.

MR. MOODY: Well, the only thing that I can really
suggest regarding this, and I'm only speaking of these
organizations, the Mafia, the Nuestra Familla, the Aryan
Brotherhood, the criminally oriented type, ié to have law
enforcement, all law enforcement, work together to stamp out
this problem rather than one going one direction and one going

ancther’direction. You need a task force-type unit to operate
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and work continually and monltor this type of thing.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Would you suégest full coopera-
tion between the different law enforcement agencies?

MR. MOODY: When you're after an organization or
organizations like this you have to hgve a concerted effort
with all law enforcement agencies, yes, sir.

SENATOR WEDWORTH; Well, there's a lot of worry out
there among the people. They have hired more and more police
officers. In fact, all branches of government have done that.
We have hired beteer educated, better trained men and still
we find in 1974 we have what I deem to be a serlous problem,
even more serious than it was in 1973 when we look at the
total, the prohlems that we face.

If we had more cooperation, cooperation between
agenclies, do you think that would eventually overcome this
problem? |

MR, MOODY: Well, I think it's a good step. I think
it's a blg step. Of course, that's Just my opinlon from
operating on this for the past year and a half.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do you think we could overcome
it by hiring more and more and more law enforcement agents?

'MK. MOODY: No, I don't believe so.

I think that you have to have dedicatéd personnel
like the ones I've been assoclated with frqm the Cgllfornia
Department of Corrections, people that are dedicated to thelr
job and are worried about not just the institution but what's

goling to harpen in frée society which is what the Department
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of Correctlions did. They warned law enfoveement what wis
golng to happen on the street Lwo yoars aro. That's why my
agency got into thils, because we were warned by the
California Department of Corrections two years ago.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do ybu think too many agenciles
lgnored that?

MR. MOODY: Well, I think some of the agencies
probably thought 1t was something out of a comic book. TI've
been laughed at and ridiculed and what not. Like we said
before, when we talked about the Mafia and the Nuestra
Familla, in my estimation, a bunch of hoodlums, they're not
sophlsticated, but their potential for sophistication is
there and the base that they have for operation in California
presents a serious and dangerous problem.

California could end up with a sophilsticated, organ-
lzed criminal group operating in this State.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That's all.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala.

SENATOR AYALA: Mr. Moody, you referred to the
Aryan Brotherhood as a white supremacy group connected with
motoreycles. Is there any connection between this group and
the prison population? Are they connected? The others as you
mentioned earlier there was some connection with.the prison
population in California. Is the Aryan Brothefhood connected
wlth the prisons, too?

MR. MOODY: The Aryan Brotherhood is.

SENATOR AYALA: They have members within prisons, too?
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MR. MOODY: ©Oh, ye¢s. That's where most of their
members are. ‘

SENATOR AYALA: Did you say there were 8Q to 100
of these?

MR. MOODY: VYes.

SENATOR AYALA: This next question I probably should
have directed to Mr. Diaz or Mr. Vasquez, but the recert
conviction of mass murderer Juan Corona who was convicted in
Northern California, was there any connection with that
attack with any of the groups we've been discussing here
today?

MR. MOODY: Not that I know of, sir.

SENATOR AYALA: Just something that was an internal
problem, not necessarily connected?

MR. MOODY; It coﬁld have heen connected with the
Aryan Brotherhood or with any of the organlzatlons, hut as far
as I know, it wasn't.

SENATOR AYALA: I don't have any other questions,
Mr. Chalrman.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 1 was going to ask you, Mr.
Moody, do you have any familiarization with the Alvarez case
that you can report to usjp

MR. MOODY: I belleve you're referring to Paché
Alvérez?

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes.

MR. MOODY: This was one of the Pirst executions

that we were made awaré of that occurred in Southern Cgllfornia
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with regard to the Mexican Mafia.
| CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: That's an executlon on the

outside?

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: That was planned on the inside?

MR. MOODY: That's correct. From my informed sources
wilthin the institution who were in the organization, Pache
Alvarez was not following orders, was not contributing to the
organization and was using the organization's name. I'm
talking about the Mexican Mafia. And for several other reasons,
I guess,a contract was placed on his 1life from the institution
and was carrlied out and he was shot to death in Southern
Callfornia.

That's not the only execution that's been carried
out on the outside. | |

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: T understand that. From what
I have heard, it occurred to me that it might‘be a rather
typilcal case, though, following the extension of violence
from inside the walls to the outslide and reaching out to
enforee the actual memhership requirements of the organization.

MR. MOODY: Well, this is part of it. You're
talking about the discipline on the inside and the hits that
they do inside the prison to perpetuate thelr organization
while they have to do it on the outside, also.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you feel that these groups
function primarily on the basis of fear?

MR. MOODY: I believe that any criminal organization
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that's beglnning and starting to grow nlways functions on
fear.,

CHHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Anythinp else?

Mr. Moody, thank you very much.

Some organlzations and individuals have requested
the right to testify. We're going to go into that in a
moment, but first we're going to take a brief recess to let
our Reporter relax her fingers.

Thank you.

(Whereupon a brief recess
was taken after which the
following proceedings were
had.)

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We willl come to order, please.

We have some other witnesses, but prior to their
testimony Ilm’going to introduce the testimony of Senator
H. L. Riclardson on July 24, 1973, to the Houﬁé Committee on
Internal Security and exh%bit thereto which are qulte 1engthy,
I'm not going to read them,

We're golng to include this with' the other exhihlts
that we have, Mr. Neal, if yoﬁ'll take thosé.

The Committee has understood i1t would recelve
testimony from Ms. Jennle Rhine of the National Lawyer's
Guild. The Committee réceived a letter from Jennie Rhine
yesterday, I belleve, wlthdrawing from‘gfyiﬁg téstimony. She
was on the agenda.

The same is true of Mr. Larry Dick, the second public
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wltness who had asked to testify and then indicated he would
not.

The third person we have 1lilsted Is Mr. Wilile
Holder of the Prisoner's Union. Is Mr. Holder present?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Holder decided not to
testify earlier today.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Fine.

Mr. Ron Silliman, Committee on Prisons, Humanity and
Justice.

Mr. Silliman, do you have copiles you want to dis-
tmbmefouﬂ

MR. SILLIMAN: Yes, I would like to.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: = You may proceed.

MR. SILLIMAN; I'11 proceed to read from my

prepared statement.

My name is Ron Silliman. - For the past two and one

half years I have heen working with the Committee for Prisoners,

Humanlty and Justice in San Rafael, of which I am presently

the director of research and public education. A member of the

coordinating council of prison organtzations, CPHJ is committed

to the abolition of prisons as we now know thém, to the
creatlon of a humane and equitable correctional system which

is essentially nonincarcerational and communlity controlled, and
to the extension of civil rights to all convictéd persons.

I wish to speak to the issue of violence in prisons, its
relationship to outside organizations, such as CPHJy which

actively seek change, to the way in which legislative and
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governmental agencles have chosen to respond to prilson
violence, and to somd specific causes of viplence within
the Department of Corrections' faclllities.

Substantive changes in the conditions of
confinement, whien they occur, will hte accompaniéd by a shift
in public attitudes toward prisonérs. The taipayer is golng
to have to perceive the convicted person as somehody much
like ‘themselves, with simllar talents, limitations, needs
and desirés. It 1Is only when this recognition is made that
it bécomes clear that it is in the best interésts of all
concerned to reintegraté the offender into thé community on
a productive‘and crime-free basis, and that incarceration
is the method least able to achieve this. It xs'therefore a
top priority of the prison and cr;minal Justice movemenﬁs to
effect this change in public opinion, to make the average
citizen fuily aware that prisoners are, in fact; real human
beings.

Prison violence 1s our greatest obstacle. Sensa;
tionalized by an understandably human and competitive
media, and to some eitent explolted by politiclans for other
pufposes -~ Senator Richardson's use of thé'caaé‘of Leo .
Robles in the death penalty campaign of 1972 is péfhaps the
most explicitly obscene example of thls -- prison wvlolence
creates a stereotype which becomes impoaéd on ail prisoners
and rigidifies the.attitudes of a cautlous and Soméwhat
fearful public. Violence .as the Prisoner's. Unlon has aptly

put it, is "the Man's game," and is likely to slow, rather

L3
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than hasten, genuine and positive chahge.

I want to stress thils point, somewhat, because
there is a habit on the part of bodies such as this to
confuse the recopnition by outside organizations that the
conditions of confinement make many prisoners legitimately
angry wlth the advocacy of violence. 1In two and one half
years I have yet to hear any serious proposal for a violent
or felonious action on the part of anyone connected with
CPHJ, wilth the member organizations of the Coordinating
Council of Prison Organizations, or even loosely associated
wilth the prison movement. And if I did hear one, I would
completely oppose it. Nevertheless, I doubt that any of these
same people are unaware as to why certain individuals are
moved by the prison system to such extreme anger as has been
evidenced by the Symbionese Liberation Army.  If we fail to
recognize that such anger is rooted in legitimate concern for
real problems, then we will continue to create the conditions
which lead inevitably to such incidents and events.

Governmental bodies, especially those coming from
correctional and législative agencles, have failed to look
realistically at the problem of violence in prisons. The
Senate Suhcommittee on Civil Disorders is not an exception.
All too often these groups tend to focus on ways of avoiding
responsibllity for the creation of the very conditions which
glve rise to violence by finding scapegoats. Typically,
such bodles tend to create stereotypes of prisonérs and to

attack those in the community who seek change in the criminal
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Justice system. Let me cite some examples:

1. The Reporter of the House Internal Securlty
Committee entitled REVOLUTIONARY TARGET; The American Penal
System, makes charges agalnst the Ngtional Lawyers Gulld,
for example, which; if true, should be gctionable, 1If not in
a court of law then certainly through the dlsclplinary process
of the statefbar assoclation, yet to date no such action has
been taken 1in spite of an alleged confesslon on the part of
a prisoner-informgnt. The failure to press such charges should
never throw the veraclty of such reports into grave doubt.
Nevertheless, this committeé chose to publish them. Likewilse,
they reprint an article by Louls Nelson and James Park, hoth
then employed at San Quentin, entitled "Wardens and Attorneys,"
yet fail to reprint the reply by Fay Stender which was
published in the same Journal. Such,unfairness demonstrates
a disinterest in arriving at any real or legitimate finding
and only serves to exacerbate the problem of wiolence in
prisons.

2. The 1974 report of the State Senate Subcommittee
on Civll Disorder reprints testimony from a witness who 1s
unable to distinguish hetween the Prisoners Union and the
United Prisoners Union. TheSe'opganizatioﬁs, as both would be
glad to tell you, have different structure, constituencies,
goals and style. ATovgive attention to complete misinformation
shows that the facts of the matter were not sopght after. 1§
this any way to solve the prohlémS'of viclence?

3. The Justice Department monograph entitled
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"Prevention of Violence in Correctlonal Institutions," makes
very simllar errors. It prints an article by Walter Dunbar
of the New York prison system which is shallow, racist and
self-serving. What 1t does not say is that the state of New
York was wllling to execute 43 human beings, including state
employees, in order to maintain a public posture of
belligerence. That incident must serve as a warning and
lesson to eyery employee of the CDC, and must effect his or
her decision making on a daily basis. I would suggest to
you that the decisions made on the basis of that lesson are
precisely those which are most apt to create tension within
the institution.

4. The CDC's own special violence task force has
not held puhlic meetings, has no prisoners on, in spite of the
fact that they hayve been the principal consumers of violence
within that system. Such a task force is less than useless.

5. The CDC's institutional violence severity
scale literally gives a higher score for killing a staff
member than 1t does for killing a prisoner. Until we admit to
oursélves that all human beings are Just that, and give some
credence to the concept that all men and women are created
equal, we wlll continue to treat others in ways which provoke
incidents of violence. I suggest that the institutional
violence severity scale demonstrates an attitude within the
CDC which is going to have to he revérsed, turned around 180

degrees, hefore there are significant inroads made in curbing

violence with our prisons.
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Finally, I want to address myself directly to some
causes of‘violence wilthin the prison: ‘adminlstrative policiles
and misuse of tensilon management. Flrst, let's loock at some
facts of prison 1life. Cllques do exlst. Why do they exlst?
Because prisoners are largely kept idle and impoverished.
Those who do have some sont of pay numbers are given wages
moré humiliating than useful. As a result, a moderately
large 1llegal commodltles market has been created within the
prison system. With some variations due to increased risk
and a lalssez faire market, the same econyhic forces which
operate in- the free world exlst within the Department of
Corrections. In order to obtaln a larger share of, and more
control over, thils market, corporations, which the media
describes as gangs of prilson militants, have arisen. To the
extent that th¢ present violence within the prisons in
California is clique-related, which, incidentally, I believe
to have been exaggerated considerably, 1t can be dealt with
most effectively by providing a guaranteed minimum wage to
all prisoners, whether assigned to work positions or not, a
minimum wage which 1s at least equal to minimum wage sbandards
presently held by thils state. This would keep 1dénsharks
qulte effectively out of business.

But 1t is within this framework of povérty, idleness,
and an 1llegal commodities market that we have to look at
administrative decisions which are taken that effect the life
of prisoners and create the preSent situation of violence. A

major factor is oVerCrowding, which leads inevltably to major
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lossen in personal space for every prisoner, resulting in

increased tension. The prlimary cause for overcrowding 1s

the policy of the Adult Authority, and we should therefore
look more closely at this policy.

California has not only the largest and most
expenslve prison system in America, but has the longest
sentences as well, with a medlan of around 36 months for a
first~-term prisoner. Permlt me to quote, now, from Gary
Garfinkle, principal consultant of the Assembly Criminal
Justlce Commlttee, in hls preliminary statement to that
committee on March 1lth of thisyear. He noted that the
percentage of parole dates Yrose from approximately 30-40%
in 1969, to 40~50% in 1979 and 1971. There was a significant
increase to 60~70% late in 1971. The trend was abruptly
and dramatically reversed early in 1972, after representatives
of the QGovernor's Office conferred with the Adult Authority
members. . ,Since early 1972," the number of men with dates
have "fallen. . .down to 10%." It is doubly worth noting
that at this point in time the percentage of prisoners being
returned with new commitments had itself dropped to about 10%,
half the recidivism rate of 1962. Thus, the reversal in
policy came at a time when the department was achiewving
unprecedented levels of parole success. This change in policy
has had the effect of creating an precedent mass of despair,
uncertainty and anger. It has also precipitated a significant
Jump in prison population, wholly unnecessarily, and thus

created a further source of tension wlth overcrowding and
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douhle celling.

There 1s more than a little cvidence avallable that
seems. to suggest that these policles, plus the large multi-
prison lock down of last winter -- 1tself a major new inpul

of tenslon amid prisoners -- wepre intended with the specifice

" purpose of demonstrating the need for new prison construction.

One major aspect of need which such policies would show 1s
that prisons are overcrowded, another would be that prisoners
are inherently more violent now than previously. If there is

any truth to this latter assertion, 1t is the result of a more

- violent Adult Authority. When Jerry Burns was murdered at

Tracy last winter, it was the Adult Authority and those
politicians‘who have placed pressure on that board, such as
Governor Reagan and Senator Richardson, who were most res-
ponsihle. And when the Department responded to that death
totally oﬁt of proportion to the deaths of a number of
prisoners, each equally victims of this situation, it only
added to the problem.

This leads me to my final point: phe misuse of
tension management within the system. Tension management 1s
a common tool in any institution, be it a schpol, a hospital,
or a prison. It involves réCpgnition of potential sources
of tension and direction of these sources so as4to arrive at
the desired goals. It can be directed very generally, such
as with the prevention of contact visits at some institutlons
or thelaudden increase of walting time for vislts at San

Quentin recently, or no specific individual is singled out for
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» qgoner ab CPHJ:
2 from a whitt prisn
: letter recelved
quote from &

"In regard'to the danger I'm 1n,
my counselor is aware of the situation
hecause he questioned me about that.
T told you in my 1ast letter that a shank
was fougd in a person's room here about

six months ago and that this shank was

who
gupposedly meant for me. The Mexican

supposedly gave this shank to the other
Mexican is still here. Of course, I
haven't said anything ahout my knowledge
of what this person did. One Mexican 18
willing to state that he was asked to
ki1l me and that the reason for. A
I've omitted th; cllique's name and individuals

throughout.
" .wanting to kill me 1s because

a certailn officer in K Wing told the
Mexican that T was the one who set him up
for the shank bust."

v din
This same man wrote in another letter of a pen ng

transfer from Tracy to Soledad:

UTn the morning or sometime tomorrow
T'1l be on the bus heading for Soledad
North and thls 1s as far as 1'm concerned

d.
a transfer with a great many pisks involve

"On the same bus going to the same

Joint 1s a known enemy and a partner of

hls. Thils enemy is the same one I spoke

to you about in my last letter.

"I can understand why this inmate
wants revenge, because he thinks I am
to blame for the three-year to 1life sentence
he recelved. As I already told you and
others, this iIsn't true and this rumor

was perpetrated by a certain officer and

possibhly others."

Another example, thls time from a prisoner in

San Quentin:

ﬁI am presently in B section
segrégatipn unit since May 1973, due to
being a victim of attack, stabbing.

?Since this time I have been under
protective custody status and have seeked
help here at thils institution numerous
times without posltive results;

Y. . .in relation to this stabhing
incident where I was found victim of
attack by the disciplinary committee, a
statement which alleges I sald ‘'which
namés sald assallagnt' ~- was.ﬁﬁhmitted by
a lleutenant that is false.and has put
my lifé‘in Jeopardy.
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"Te pegin with, I did not make no

guch statement and have already exhaustoed

and asked a question, while I was
all procedures: appeallng 1t to the answering I was shot. While waiting fov
Warden, to the Director of Corrections the officer to come for count, I bathed
with negative results! ® my wound, and pulled teeth of the
"Rehind this Lieutenant's fabricated zipper out of my wound. At or ahout
statement, I am unable to functlion here ' 1 am November 1lU4th the officers came back
in the general population or at any institu- ® for count. I stopped them, showed them

tion wlthout finding my life in jeopardy.

I have been locked up now in segregatior

my wound, and told them I had been shot
earlier in the evening. The officers

shook their head and leftl I sat down

for nine months and subjected to mental: P
strain and verbal harassment by this and at about 1:30 am I am tsken out of
false statement. I can't even transfer my cell and escorted to B Wing (the
to another institution!” ® hospital). I am placed in the treatment
A third example, even more extreme, again from a ® room, and the MTA treats my wound and I
prisoner in Tracy, whose K-wing appears to he the most poorly : am questioned by two sergeants'and a
run unit in the CDC system: o E picture is taken of the wound all at one
"T was housed in K-~319, P.C. tler. | time. After I had been ex-rayed (sic)
Noyember 13th, at or about 11 p.m. T was ; I was taken upstairs and placed in a cell
shobt in the side of the head by an ® ; of the hospltal ward. Immedlately upon
institution made weapon, the barrel was ‘ entering I am questioned again and the
made from a hole in the concrété wall MTA is explaining or at least trying to
where a towel rack used to be bolted down ® L tell the sergeants to let me rest. But
at. The charge -- gunpowder -- was made . @ they kept on. And while still in shock
from matches, the bullet was the teeth ; from the accident I told the two sergeants
of a zlpper from a coat. What happen was ..i . . .1 had heen shot through a hole by a
‘I was called to the 'Hole' by my nelghbor 'x. zip gun by my nelghhor.
| "Later in the morning of this day
~146-
L

-147~



I gonstrusted a letter. . . addressed to
my mother explaining that I had been shot
but I was all right. This letter was
returned marked 'Institution Gossip'.

"Later during the week I was moved
back to K-wing and placed in 336 away from
the individual that I had been shot by.
January 5th, inmate was moved to cell 334
two doors from me, hls partner. . .was
moved into Cell 335 next door to me."

The prisoner goes on here to explain that he
complained about the placing of the prisoner who had shot him
8¢ close and éh@n continues,

"Meanwhile the man who shot me pulls
out a write up and gives 1t to hils partnef
telling him to read it aloud, which he does --
thls write up is for shooting me. It states
it plainly that I told on him. Now this
is heard on both 2nd and 3rd tier. On
these 2 tlers are members of the clique
and another cligue.

"Most of these inmates will be
transferring to other institutions so the
word will spread.”

8ince this time, this prisoner has had at least one
other attempt made on his life, directly related’to his having

heen cited in the write up.
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All three sltuations ave praphle 1llustratlons
of conscious decisions on the part of correctlonal stuff
which resulted in increased violence, or at minimum,
increased risk. These letters are not unique in our files,
merely recent and particularly graphic. They characterize
the problems of a system operating under the conditions
previously described.

Theée problems can hest be solved by taking broad
steps which would effect all prisoners. Firing one or two
guards who act out of malevolent motives is not the solution.
Altering the Adult Authority policy, which is based in politics
and not in reality, would. The California prison population
could be brought to less than 1Q,00Q0 persons today without
creatlng any new dangers to the ciltizens of California, and
those 10,000 prisoners ~~ and I personally feel this figure
to be quite high -~ could he housed in minimum-medium
institutions, and California would discover that it had
solved lts problem of prison violence overnight.

Thank you. |

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: Thank you, Mr. Silliman. I
might point out to you that the CPHJ organizatlon has not heen
mentioned by any witness.

MR. SILLIMAN: I realize that, th there has been
a general tendency to refer to a number of other outside
organizations quite a few of which our organizatlon has worked
with. This tends to reflect and spread on literally every

private social agency which attémpts to work wlth prisoners

2
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and with the famillies of prisoners in Lhe comaunity.
| CHALRMAN CARPENTER: Well, I take nollce of the
fact personally that I have over the past two or three years
b@én in contact with a number of organizations interested 1n
~prisoners' vwellare and the rehabllitative system such as it is
and what have you. I would only say in response to that that
this Commitiee in 1ts limited scope of interest in these
problems does not direct itself so much toward prisoners'
rightt and the welfare of prisoners and the rehabilitative
gretem snd so forth hecause there are otﬂer committees and
gther activities and lnterests that relate to thaﬁ subject
o I édidn’t mean to say that we, thé'members of this
Lowmittea, have no interest in them, hut by way of explanaﬁion
this subcommittee is interested in violence in our societ
and we've been in to a number of other aresas. y
MR. SILLIMAN: I do realize that.
T happen;;*h“ik So we have to take 1into account
; | within that system whether you're
all right or the Department is all right, and I suspect
15 totally correct in this instance. e e
We're recognizing not so much the causes, hut we're
lmzkihg at the effect and the impact it has on the outside
and so fortl ‘
. orth. I just wanted to see 1f you could understand
MR, SILLIMAN: That's true. Personally, one of my
reasons for coming here today and for making the statementu
as I did; which to another committee I might havebmade
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it differently, was that I felt that this committee would

do better to 1ocok at the problem of violence in pcrhaps a

larger context and larger scope.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Look at the causes?

MR. SILLIMAN: Look at the causes of violence.
roblem. Three

I

agree with you that violence 1is a very serious P

times in the past two years 1 have either had to or been &

party to watching one person in our office £ell another person

f a prisoner that that person had

or friend or famlly member O

died, and obviously I am not happy with that kind of a situa-

tion.’vNobody in an outsilde organization is. As I stressed,

prison violence is our greatest ohstacle. We want to change

public attitude.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: T think in some of our other

activities in the Committee there are some schools, public

schools in our State, particularly in Southern California,
nereasing and frightening resemblance to the

that bear an i

prison system.

MR. SILLIMAN: In administration or ylolence

characteristics.

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: No, in terms of wyiolence that

comes up. You know, when you get into causes there you're

almost in a different situation. They aren't related but the

effect and cause 18 Very similar.

MR, SILLIMAN: The problem with the institutlons

is something that I think Mr. Moody indirectly brought up
which as I sald,

when he pointed out inside organizétions,
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are primitive corporations and certainly are one of the best
examples of the natural processes of free enterprise left °
totally without control that I have seen -- thelr inability
to make substantive headway in a free soclety 1s an ecxample
of what happens in that kind of an organization in a frec and @
open soclety and community, which the Department of Corrections
is not and has not been.
CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala? ®
SENATOR AYALA: Well, I understood that this
Committee was to investigate some of these groups, not for
the purpose of placing gullt but for the purpose of learning P
what 1s happening and what's going on and then to perhaps

recommend correetive legislation.

In one of your paragraphs here at the bottom of ®

page one, I kind of think you're taking a shot at us before
we even get started, as far as I'm concerned. Governmental
bodies, you say, especlally those coming from corrective and ®
legislative bodles have falled to look realistically at the
problems of violence in prisons and the Senate Subcommittee
on Civil Disorder 1s not an exception. I'd like to take °
exeeption to your exception. I think we're trying, not to
place gullt on Indlividuals, but to find out what is really
poing m{ and perhaps come up Wilth corrective leglslation that ®
will attempt to resolve the problems.
MR. SILLIMAN: Okay; I suggest that you might take
a ﬁ@riaué look at the Adult Authorlty. ‘ P
CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth, did you have
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any questions?

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Just tc inform the gentleman
that we're here to get the facts and we'll take testimony from
anyone that's involved in this hoth inside and out, from
intelligence groups --.

MR. SILLIMAN: I appreciate that.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You know, don't think that one
person or one group 1is all truth or all factual any more than

we do other people, but when we get all the testimony to-

_gether, correlate 1t, put it together, we might come up with

a few facts.
MR. SILLIMAN: ‘I do appreciate that. And I also
appreclate that perhaps unfortunately the hlistory of this

Committee and its predecessors in this State and the national

‘level -~ I'm thinking specifically of the House Internal

Securlty Committee -- have been such that private orgénizatidns

and individuals outside have been unwilling in the past to

~come forward and speak openly.

I think it's only when we hegin to open up a
dialogﬁe honestly on both sides that we can ﬁegin to work
cooperatively toward a solution which Qill ﬁeet the needs of
everybody concerned.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, I agree to a point, but
there's some information that I think that we should have
that we can't have publicly. There's some people who can't
talk. The person you're referring to in your letter there is

afraid he's going to get killed.
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MR, SILLIMAN: Tuab's guite true,

GENATOR VIELWORETH: He can't talk.

ME. SILLIMAN: No.

CEHATOR WELWORTH: How are you going to get a
person like that at o pubilie meeting, hearing?

MR, SILLIMAN: Well, the problems of a closed
commuriity -~ T think the closest example to an outside
gltuation that would parallel that kind of fear would be
Han Francioceo's Chinatown and its gang problems. There we'lve
polt a culturnally elosed community and as you may have been
aware grand juries have had difficulty getting testimony from
persons involved in those activities,

Here we have an Instltutionally closed community.
I1t's the closedness which I think creates that potential
fqr fear and for violence and for retribution on the part of
thegse individuals.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: We're working now after it's
Leen ereated.

MR. SILILIMAN: I reallze that.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Not hefore.

MR, SILLIMAN: I realize that.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: 8o don't you agree that we have
to do the hest we can to get Into a closed soclety to get
some information?

MR, SILLIMAN: I agree.

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Otherwlse, we can't do anything.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I know; Mr. Silliman, hecause I

think it mlght be of general interest to others here that I
feel as you do that,that when we look at thls problem we take
cognizance of the fact -~ or at least I dc -~ that we're
talking about some 20,00Q pecople who are inmates,

MR. SILLIMAN: Twenty-three.

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 23,000. As a former law
enforcement officlal mysell, my own judgment o
to rehabllitate appropriately the people is that it is a
rather dismgl fallure.

MR. SILLIMAN: Yes.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: On the other hand, we have
more than 20 millions of people outside in socliety making
their own way as best they can on whom some of the impact of
violence is extremely negativye in terms of fear, in termes of
our responslbllity as 'government to provide an orderly
soclety in which they must lilve. The numhers are rather
overwhelming in that context, too, when we talk ahout violence.

On the other hand, the guy on the lnside, he has
no place to hide. He can't change geography if he doesn't
like where he 1is and.what have you. So he's vyictimized in
quite a different way and with muchlgreafer and more dramatlc
1mpact, I realilze. | |

Well, that's really all. VWe're trylng to find our
way through a maze that's very complicated.

MR. SILLIMAN: Okay.

CHATIRMAN CARPENTER: T. appreciaté yo{lr comments.

MR. SILLIMAN: I appreciate your listening.
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Thank you.

Mr. Connor Nixon?

Mr. John Ellingston?

Mr. Jan Mariniscen?

Ts there anyone else in the audience that wishes
to be heard?

Thank you for your attention. We'll declare this
meebing closed.

~=0Q0~~
(Whereupon the above

hearing was concluded.)
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